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7 Settled 7752 :
&MESTOWN
NORTH CARQLINA

October 26, 2012

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Town Council
Town of Jamestown, North Carolina

The general statutes of North Carolina require that every local government publish within
four months after the close of the fiscal year a complete set of audited financial
statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm
of certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the
comprehensive annual financial report of the Town of Jamestown for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the
information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal
control that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should
not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

The financial statements of the Town of Jamestown were audited by Dixon Hughes
Goodman LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Dixon Hughes Goodman
LLP has issued an unqualified opinion on the Town of Jamestown’s financial statements
for the vear ended June 30, 2012. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent
auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic
financial statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government
The Town of Jamestown, incorporated in 1947, is located in the Piedmont section of
North Carolina. It currently occupies 2.8 square miles and serves a population of 3,504,



The Town extended the planning jurisdiction in 2008 and now, including this Extra
Territorial Jurisdiction, encompasses a planning area of 6 square miles. The Town of
Jamestown is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal properties
located within its corporate boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to extend its
corporate limits by annexation.

The Town of Jamestown operates under the council-manager form of government.
Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council (Council)
consisting of the mayor and four other members, elected on a non-partisan basis. The
Council appoints the government’s manager, who in turn appoints the heads of the
various departments. Council members serve two-year terms.

The Town of Jamestown provides a full range of services that includes public safety,
sanitation, street maintenance, planning, recreation (including a golf course), general
administration, and others. In addition to these general government activities, the Town
provides and maintains water and sewer utilities for the benefit of its citizens. The Town
also extends financial support to a variety of agencies and associations to assist their
efforts in serving citizens.

The Council is required to adopt a final budget by no later than the close of the fiscal
year. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the Town of Jamestown’s financial
planning and control. For the Town of Jamestown, annual budgets are adopted for the
General Fund, General Capital Reserve Fund, Water and Sewer Fund, Randleman
Reservoir Capital Reserve Fund, and Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund.
Appropriations for annually budgeted funds are made at the departmental level. A
department (such as sanitation) is a component of a function (such as public services).
The Town Manager is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer appropriations
between departments of a fund up to an amount not exceeding $25,000; however any
revisions that alter the total expenditures of a fund must be approved by the Council.

Local Economy

The 2010 Decennial Census data compilation has not been completed for towns of
Jamestown's size at the time of the publication of this document. However, available
information from the 2010 Census and the 2002 Economic Census provides us with a
"snapshot" of the local economy in Jamestown.

According to the 2010 Census data, approximately 63% of the adult residents (16 years
and older) of the Town of Jamestown are in the labor force. This is down from nearly
73% in 2000. Some of this reduction can be attributed to unemployment, but it is more
likely that retirement is the leading cause in the reduction of residents in the labor force.
Unemployment in the Town of Jamestown in 2010 was 4.2%, up from 2.5% in 2000. In
June 2012, unemployment in Guilford County was 9.5%. Unemployment rates for the
Greensboro Metropolitan Statistical Area (including Greensboro, High Point, and
surrounding areas as a whole) were listed at 10.3%, reflecting the MSA's influence on the
overall County unemployment rate numbers.
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Most Jamestown residents do not work in Jamestown. According to the 2000 Census
data, only 18% of residents worked in town with the balance of the workforce commuting
to other areas in and around Guilford County. The Jamestown commuters are, for the
most part, evenly divided between those who work in Greensboro and those who work in
High Point, with Greensboro having a slight edge due to more available jobs. Over 40%
of Jamestown residents work in management or other professional occupations.
According to the 2002 Economic Census, there are a total of 145 establishments with a
total of 1,201 paid employees in Jamestown. The manufacturing sector accounts for 71%
of the employment of these firms, and the wholesale trade sector accounts for 22%; these
are the largest two employment sectors.

Long-term Financial Planning

The fund balance of the General Fund available for appropriation at fiscal year-end stood
at 47.51% of the total expenditures incurred in the General Fund. This percentage, which
exceeds the minimum of 8% set as a policy guideline by the Local Government
Commission, increased from 21.78% for the previous fiscal year but is still less than the
average percentage of 69.5% for other cities and towns within our population group. The
Town adopted a minimum fund balance policy during the 2012 fiscal year, which calls
for available fund balance to be equal to or greater than one-half of the average
percentage for the Town’s population group. The available fund balance currently
exceeds this level.

Town Council has approved a formal Capital Improvement Plan for projects and
equipment requested to implement long-range plans and growth objectives. While this
Capital Improvement Plan includes plans for some funding of long-range projects, many
of the projects are as yet unfunded. As a part of the budget process, the Town is now
providing some funding to a General Capital Reserve Fund and also a Water and Sewer
Capital Reserve Fund to begin to address funding for future capital needs. A capital
project fund has also been established for construction of a downtown park, which will be
financed in part by PARTF funds.

Relevant financial policies

The Town’s cash management policy has been to invest idle funds in certificates of
deposit with local banks and in the North Carolina Capital Management Trust. Thus
there is no risk of a negative change in the fair value of the Town’s investments.
Although interest rates declined significantly in the current year from previous years’
rates, investment income remains an integral part of the Town’s revenues. The Town
does not foresee any change i this cash management policy for the coming fiscal year.

Major initiatives

In June of 2012, Town Council approved the Town’s updated Capital Improvement
Program (CIP). It encourages the Town and the community to identify not only what

111



expenditures they wish and/or expect to make, but also to identify potential funding
sources in order to more properly plan for the acquisition or construction of assets. The
program is updated and revised on an annual basis to ensure previous projections are still
on course. In so doing, the Town is always working on a prospective five-year detailed
project schedule with projections of six to ten years out. The Town Council and citizens
will benefit from this flexible fmancial planning tool while furthering Jamestown’s
financial security. In fiscal years 2011 and 2012, Town Council established a General
Capital Reserve Fund and a Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund to begin saving for
projects such as those listed in the CIP.

The Town applied for and received two separate Parks and Recreation Trust Fund
(PARTF) grants to assist with the purchase and development of two lots located near
Town Hall in the central business district. The 2007 Parks & Recreation Master Plan
included a survey, which was sent to everyone in Jamestown who has a water billing
account, asking for their input regarding parks and recreation facilities, needs, and
desires. One of the "Top 5" priorities of the citizens of Jamestown was the addition of
park lands and, in particular, smaller community park spaces. The Town completed the
purchase in October 2009, and began the planning phase to develop the land into a
downtown park to be called Wrenn-Miller Park. Town Council has allocated funding to
begin work on the first phase of this project, and the Wrenn-Miller Capital Project Fund
has been set up. Completion of the initial phase of construction is estimated to cost
approximately $260,000, half of which will be paid by the PARTF grant award received
in 2012, which could include facilities such as open green space, picnic tables, walking
trails, and game areas.

The Town Council approved a contract with Richard Mandell Golf Architecture in June
2009 to assist staff and community in developing a Golf Course Renovation Business
Plan. This plan is a guide for needed renovation of course infrastructure at the Jamestown
Park Golf Course. The first component approved by Town Council was the replacement
of the park irrigation system, which began in December of 2010. Funding is being set
aside in the General Capital Reserve Fund for future capital projects at Jamestown Park,
of which greens complex replacement is a top consideration.

The Town contracted with an engineering consultant and requested the help of the North
Carolina Rural Water Authority to assist town staff to conduct a sewer system evaluation
study and develop a 20-year capital improvement plan for future rehabilitation of the
sewer system. This study involved consultant and staff time to perform various field
operations including manhole inspections, pipe smoke testing, die testing, pipe cleaning,
and close circuit television inspections. This first phase of this project concluded in June
2010. Town staff is continuing to the second and final phase of this project through
service contracts to perform close circuit televising of sewer pipe. This project is
anticipated to be completed by the fall of 2012.

The town is a partner in the Randleman Reservoir project with the Piedmont Triad
Regional Water Authority (PTRWA). This twenty-year project i1s now complete as the
water treatment plant and transmission lines have been constructed. The Town’s



partnership with PTWRA secures the Town’s rights to water in the reservoir and
agreements with the cities of High Point and Greensboro ensure the transmission of the
water to Jamestown. The water treatment plant began pumping water to the county and
municipal partnership in October of 2010.

The Town of Jamestown does not own its wastewater treatment facility. In order to
secure treatment capacity, the town has a joint —use facility agreement with the City of
High Point to maintain and operate the Eastside Wastewater Treatment Plant. Jamestown
owns a capacity allocation in this plant and shares responsibility for future maintenance
of this facility.

The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) and the Town of Jamestown
partnered to improve four crosswalks along Main St. and Guilford Rd. to make walking
through Jamestown safer and more relaxing. Improvements included installing and
upgrading pedestrian signals, wheelchair ramps and crosswalks.

As part of the Town’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP), during the 2012 fiscal year,
the Town upgraded water meters throughout Town with Automatic Meter Reading
(AMR) equipment. The AMR technology allows for quicker, safer, and more frequent
meter reading from a service truck driving in the vicinity of the meters.

Staff is currently working with NC DOT representatives with a proposed resurfacing
project for West and East Main St., a state maintained roadway, to occur in the fall of
2012. In conjunction with the resurfacing, the Town has requested traffic calming devices
be incorporated along the downtown section of roadway to aid in slowing traffic and
better protect pedestrians. Traffic calming devices may include center refuge islands for
pedestrians, restriping of lanes, configuring curb extensions at crosswalks, and medians.

Town staff requested contract approval from Town Council to replace the existing water
line in Robbins Ave., and this was completed by June 2012. The project included
upsizing the water main and replacing services and meters.

The Town uses Powell Bill funding from the State of North Carolina as its sole source of
funding maintenance of public streets. Streets are prioritized based on need of repairs and
continuity of paving in a responsible manner. The Powell Bill funds are used once every
other year in a paving contract to ensure better cost control.

The existing Water and Sewer Maintenance Facility on Harvey Road has long been
neglected and is in need of major improvements or replacement in the near future. One
consideration may be to incorporate Golf Course Maintenance and Public Services into
one building on the prior fairground property on East Fork Road. A detailed study 1s
proposed for FY 2012-13 to assess needs for each department and determine which
features can be used by both departments.



Construction of approximately 700 LF of 6" water main and abandon existing 1 1/2"
water main (constructed ~1948) from Main Street to Brookdale Drive on Potter Drive is
planned for the Fall of 2012,

Construction of approximately 1500 LF of 12" water main along the roadway shoulder of
Vickrey Chapel Road to provide water service south of the proposed NCDOT U2412-B
Bypass project is proposed for FY 2012-13. The installation will be done concurrently
with the NCDOT project to facilitate construction methods and costs. Part of this
extension will be to provide water service to the Millis Road area in addition to providing
fire service. The line may be extended along Millis Road in the future to serve the
Jamestown sites of the Koury Development.

Also planned for the fall of 2012 is a pipe re-lining project of an existing reinforced
concrete outfall line beginning near the crossing at Oakdale Road and proceeding
upstream through the Jamestown Oaks Subdivision toward the Bull Run Subdivision. The
sections of pipe to be lined will include the entire outfall throngh Jamestown Oaks and
other sections identified as needing repair based on the sewer system evaluation study.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Town of
Jamestown for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial
report. This report must satisty both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.

We wish to express our appreciation to all members of the finance and administration
department who contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to
the mayor and the governing council for their unfailing support for maintaining the
highest standards of professionalism in the management of the Town of Jamestown’s
finances.

Respectfully submitted,

Cliont. £ Qi B Bl

Charles E. Smith, Jr. Judy B. Gallman, CPA
Town Manager Finance Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Town Council
Town of Jamestown
Jamestown, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Jamestown, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which
collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of Jamestown's management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Jamestown as of
June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
appropriate, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
Qctober 26, 2012 on our consideration of the Town of Jamestown’s internal control over financial
reporting, and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants. The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control aver financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
Management's Discussion and Analysis, and the Other Postemployment Benefits Schedules of
Funding Progress and Schedules of Employer Contributions on pages 3 through 13, and 53 and
54, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
althcugh not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information,
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United State of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinicns on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Jamestown’s basic financial statements. The combining and
individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, and other schedules are presented for
purposes of additional analysis, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management, and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, and the other
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary
schedules, and other schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole. The introductery and statistical sections have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures appiied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion nor provide any assurance on them.

Liseon t‘ﬁﬂh(.’é Goadman [LP

October 26, 2012



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Jamestown, we offer readers of the Town of Jamestown’'s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of
Jamestown for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, We encourage readers to read the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the
Town's financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

+ The assets of the Town of Jamestown exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal
year by $25,143,700 (net assets).

 The government's total net assets increased by $69,492, due to an jncrease in the
governmental net assets that was greater than the decrease in the business-type
activities net assets.

» As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Jamestown's governmental
funds reported an ending fund balance of $2,043,451, an increase of $859,807 in
fund balance. Approximately 28.59% of this total amount, or $584,195, is
nenspendable or restricted,

s At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund
was $1,327,782, or 37.58% of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

e The Town of Jamestown’s total installment purchase debt decreased by $78,280
{59.98%) during the current fiscal year. The factor in this change is the payment of
scheduled amounts on existing installment purchases.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Town of Jamestown’s
basic financial statements. The Town's basic financiai statements consist of three components; 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2} fund financial statements: and 3) notes to the financial
statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the town
through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the
basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance
the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the Town of Jamestown.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Basic
Management's
Financial
Discussion and
‘ Statements
Analysis
Government-Wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financiai
Statements Statements Statements
Summary » Detall

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the
Government-Wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term
information about the Town of Jamestown’s financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements. These
statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the Town government.
These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There
are three parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds
statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund
statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the
financial statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements.
After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show details about the
Town’s individual funds. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also
can be found in this part of the statements.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a
broad overview of the Town’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a
private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short- and long-
term information about the Town'’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the Town’s net assets and how they
have changed. Net assets are the difference between the Town's total assets and
total liabilities. Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the Town's financial
condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental
activities; and 2) business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of
the Town’'s basic services such as public safety, recreation, public services, and
general administration. Property taxes, state shared revenues and golf course fees
finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the Town
charges customers to provide the services. These include the water and sewer
services offered by the Town of Jamestown.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the Town's most
significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.
The Town of Jamestown, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses
fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-
related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the Town budget
erdinance. All of the funds of the Town of Jamestown can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Most of the Town's basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These
funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and
what monies are left at year end that will be available for spending in the next year.
Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting that provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the
governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view
that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available
to finance the Town's programs. The relationship between government activities
(reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial
statements.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Town of Jamestown adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required
by the General Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates
input from the citizens of the Town, the management of the Town, and the decisions
of the Council about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also
authorizes the Town to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current
period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund
demonstrates how well the Town complied with the budget ordinance and whether or
not the Town succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was
adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of
accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as
the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original
budget as adopted by the Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the Council; 3)
the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General
Fund; and 4} the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual
resources and charges. To account for the difference between the budgetary basis of
accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in
the reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.

Proprietary Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The Town of Jamestown uses an enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer
activity. This fund is the same as the function shown in the business-type activities in
the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 25 of
this report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the
Town of Jamestown’s progress in funding postemployment benefits. Required
supplementary information can be found beginning on page 52 of this report.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Town of Jamestown’s Net Assets

Figure 2
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Current and other asseats $ 2,507,820 $ 1,467,596 % 5313,161 & 5,620,419 & 7,820,881 & 7,088,015
Capital assets 6,387.659 5,638,928 13,691,460 14,030,649 20,089,119 20,669,577
Total assets 8,905.479 8,106,524 19,004,621 19,651,068 27,910.100 27,757,592
Long-term liabilities outstanding 69,473 125,581 1,805,393 1,847,970 1,974,866 2,073,551
Other liabilities 505,026 357,022 286,508 252,811 791,534 609,833
Total liabilities 574,499 482,603 2,191,901 2,200,781 2,766, 400 2,683,384
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
nat of related debt 6,345,439 5,508,428 11,703,446 12,013,654 18,048,885 18,522,082
Restricted 549,642 532,050 - - 649 642 532,050
Unrestricted 1,335,899 583,443 5,109,274 5,436,633 6,445,173 6,020,076
Total net assets $ 8,330,980 § 7,623,921 5 16,812,720 % 17,450,287 $ 25,143,700 $ 25,074,208

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a
government’s financial condition. The assets of the Town of Jamestown exceeded
liabilities by $25,143,700 as of June 30, 2012. The Town's net assets increased by
369,492 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. However, a portion {71.78%)
reflects the Town's investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and
equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those
iterns. The Town of Jamestown uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens, consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
the Town of Jamestown’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of the
outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided
by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
An additional portion of the Town of Jamestown’s net assets, $649,642 represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The
remaining balance of $6,445,173 is unrestricted.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Several particular aspects of the Town's financial operations influenced the total
unrestricted governmental net assets:

+ A decrease in ad valorem tax revenues, although collections of property
taxes at 97.13%, still exceeds the statewide average of 97.07%.
e Adecrease in investment income.

s A one-time transfer of funds from the Water and Sewer Fund to the General
Fund, which represented a forgiveness of an advance made in the prior year.

« Anincrease in golf operations revenues.

Town of Jamestown Changes in Net Assets

Figure 3
Sovernm e ntal Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 Z2011
Revenues:
Frogramrevenues:
Charges Tor serviceas $ 1.118,350 k3 840,309 $ 2,859,258 F 2.986 626 L 2,877,608 & 3.826,935
Operating grants and
contributions 207,000 372,600 - - 207,000 AT7T2.6C00
Ganearal revenues:
Property taxes 1,548,994 1.569,.856 - - 1.548,994 1,569 . 856
Other taxes T7EG.492 769,000 - - T7TE 492 F7E9,000
Other 10.9089 5.425 21.250 25,389 22,158 40,514
Total revenues 2,661,744 3.557.190 2,880,508 3,022,015 5.542,.252 5,579,205
Expenses:
General government 812,198 o008, 783 - - 812,198 508,783
Public services 586,260 431,205 - - 586,360 “431,205
Public salfaety Tor. 242 750,280 - - TR, 242 750,380
Recreation 1,518,271 1,721,506 - - 1.5189,271 1,721,506
INnterest on long-term debt 4,040 7.954 - 2,.8Aa0
vvater and s aew ar - — 2.759,G40 2,254,896 2,759,649 2,254, 696
Total expenses A,7132,111 32,519,828 2,759,649 2,254 696 &S, 472, 760 5,774,524
Imcrease {decrease) in net assats
before transfears (51,287 37.362 120,859 TET7 . 319 59,492 804,681
Transfers 758,426 - (758,426) — -
INcrease (decrease) in nelt aassets TO7. 059 Q7,362 (S37,567) TEe7, 319 58,492 804,681
MNet assets, July 1 7.623,921 7,586,559 17,450.287 16,682,968 25,074,208 24,269,527
Net assats, June 30 s 85.330.980 F 7,623,921 $165.812,720 $ 17,450,287 5 25,143,700 2] 25.074,208




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities before transfers decreased the
Town's net assets by $51,367. Revenues (mainly in the recreation function)
increased but expenditures also increased at a slightly higher rate. However, after a
one-time transfer of $758,426 from the Water and Sewer Fund, net assets of the
governmental activities increased by $707,059.

Business-Type Activities: Business-type activities before transfers increased the
Town of Jamestown's net assets by $120,859, but declined from an increase in net
assets of $767,319 in the previous year. This decline is due to decreased revenues
from the previous fiscal year revenues by approximately 4.3% (due to a decrease in
water and sewer usage) and higher expenditures by approximately 20%. A new
radio-read meter system accounts for the higher level of expenditures in the current
fiscal year. After a one-time transfer of $758,426 to the General Fund, the net assets
of the business-type activities decreased by $637 567.

Financial Analysis of the Town Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of Jamestown uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the Town of Jamestown’s governmental funds is
to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable
resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town of Jamestown’s
financing requirements. Specifically, fund balance available for appropriation can be
a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end
of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Jamestown. At the end
of the current fiscal year, Town of Jamestown’s fund balance available in the General
Fund was $1,701,518, while total fund balance was $2,011,229. The Town Council
of the Town of Jamestown has determined that the Town should maintain an
available fund balance equal to or greater than 50% of its population group average
available fund balance. Currently the Town of Jamestown has an available fund
balance of 47.51% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance
represents 56.92% of total General Fund expenditures. The Town's population group
average available fund balance is currently 69.50%.

At June 30, 2012, the governmental funds of the Town of Jamestown reported a
combined fund balance of $2,043,451, with a net increase in fund balance of
$859,807. Included in this change in fund balance are increases in the General
Fund, the General Capital Reserve Fund and the Wrenn-Miller Capital Project Fund.
The increase is primarily due to a transfer from the Water and Sewer Fund to the
General Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the Town revised the
budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three
categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare
the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments
made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as federal and
state grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain
services.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Budget amendments were made to increase both restricted intergovernmental
revenues and public services expenditures due to awarding of grants; however the
projects under these grants were not completed by the end of the fiscal year, so the
revenues and expenditures were less than the budgeted amounts. [nvestment
income and property tax collections were also much less than anticipated.
Expenditures were held in check to comply with its budgetary requirements. Budgets
far a transfer from the General Capital Reserve Fund back to the General Fund, and
for repayment of an advance from the Water and Sewer Fund to the General Fund
were deleted due to forgiveness of the advance repayment by the Water and Sewer
Fund.

Proprietary Funds. The Town's proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide statements, but in more detail
Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the fiscal year
amounted to $5,109,274. The Water and Sewer Fund had a decrease of $637,567 in
net assets. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been
addressed in the discussion of the Town of Jamestown'’s business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The Town of Jamestown's investment in capital assets for its
governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2012, totals $20,089,115
(net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include buildings, roads, sidewalks,
land and improvements, water and sewer lines, machinery and equipment, park
facilities, vehicles, and intangible assets, such as water and wastewater treatment
rights.

Capital asset transactions during the year include the foilowing additions:

e Purchase of skid steer and attachments in the amount of $45,356, and
a scanner for $8,700.

o Water line improvements in the amount of $89,281 and design wark on
new water lines in the amount of $25,048.

* Additions to intangible assets of $13,308.
= Survey and land clearing at the future Wrenn-Miller Park of $3,781.

-10 -
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Water rights

Wastewater
treatment rights

Land

Buildings and
systems

Improvements
other than
buildings

Machinery,
vehicles, and
equipment

Infrastructure

Construction-in-
progress

Total

Town of Jamestown’s Capital Assets
Figure 4

(Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
- % - % 3,686,841 % 3,758,758 S 3,686,841 % 3,758,758
- - 2.788,575 2,895,856 2,788,575 2,895,856
2,131,740 2,131,740 - - 2,131,740 2,131,740
2,045,809 2127,749 14,372 16,112 2,060,181 2,143,861
997 676 1,073,470 - - 997 676 1,073,470
219,725 296,014 362,025 398,592 581,750 694,606
143,104 154,131 6,807,460 6,950,894 6,950,564 7.105,025
859,605 855,824 32,187 10,437 891,792 866,261
6,397,659 § 65,638,928 3$ 13,691,460 3% 14,030,649 $ 20,089,119 $ 20,669,577

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 2 of the
Basic Financial Statements.

-11 -
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Town of Jamestown's Qutstanding Debt

Figure 5
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Installment
purchases 5 852,220 % 130,500 3% - % - $ 52220 & 130,500
Total $ 52220 % 130,500 $ - % - 3 52,220 8 130,500

The Town of Jamestown’s total debt decreased by $78,280 (59.98 %) during the past fiscal year,
due to the payment of scheduled amounts to existing installment purchases.

Long-Term Debt. As of June 30, 2012, the Town of Jamestown had no bonded debt.

North Carclina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of
government can issue to 8% of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that
government’s boundaries. The legal debt margin for the Town of Jamestown is $31,708,308.
The Town has no bands authorized but un-issued at June 30, 2012, Additional information
regarding the Town of Jamestown’s commitments and long-term obligations can be found in
Note 2 beginning on page 46 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the Town and
surrounding area:

« According to the Office of State Budget and Management, Jamestown’s total
population was 3,504,

o The per capita income for the Greensboro-High Point Metropolitan Statistical Area is
$34,296, and the unemployment rate is 10.3%.

e The Town continues to improve the downtown area, and the Town is a “walkable”
community with approximately six miles of sidewalks connecting neighborhoods to
Main Street. The planning stages began in 2009/2010 on a downtown park and
work was begun in the current fiscal year. A PARTF grant for construction of this
park was awarded in August 2012, in the amount of $132,688.

e Jamestown continues to financiaily support the local non-profit associations, such
as the YMCA, the Jamestown Public Library, the Historic Society, and Jamestown
Youth League.

12 -



Management's Discussion and Analysis
Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013

Governmental Activities: The property tax rate increased to $.395 per $100 valuation, in order
to remain revenue-neutral after a property tax revaluation. Property tax and interest collections
are estimated to bring in a projected $1,547,000 in revenues. The Town continues to fund the
General Capital Reserve Fund for future capital needs with $.02 of the tax rate and a lump sum
of $64,000. Jamestown's share of sales tax revenue is projected fo be $374,000. County
reimbursement for Gibson Park operating expenses of $184 380 is budgeted to cover the
expenses and provide a 10% indirect cost reimbursement. The budget keeps the solid waste fee
at $7 per month per household that will bring in an estimated $109,000 in revenues. All fees
remain at the same level.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are expected to decrease approximately 3.9% to
3,732,278. The Town continues to fund several grants to local non-profit organizations, and this
will account for 3.4% of the General Fund expenditures in the coming year. The Town budget
includes funds to continue the operation agreement for fire protection services with Pinecroft
Sedgefield Fire Department and a contract for law enforcement, animal control services, and tax
billing and collection services with Guilford County.

Business - Type Activities: An increase of approximately 3% has been budgeted in water and
sewer rates. New construction tap fees are estimated to generate $10,000 in revenues. The
two largest contracted service expenditure amounts are for payments to the City of High Point for
the cost of treating sewage, and payments to the Piedmont Triad Regional Water Authority and
the City of High Point for the purchase of water. Capital projects planned include various water
and sewer projects. A Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund was established to save for
future water and sewer capital needs. This will be funded by a transfer from the Water and
Sewer Fund equal each year to the amount of depreciation expense from the previous year.

Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town finances for those with an interest in
this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for

additional information should be directed to the Finance Officer, Judy Gallman, P. O. Box 848,
Jamestown, NC 27282 336-454-1138, or visit our website, www.jamestown-nc.gov.

13-
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 1
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
ASSETS Activities Activities Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,795,112 3 4,775,840 % 6,570,952
Receivables:
Taxes receivable, net 39,811 - 39,811
Accrued interest receivahble 7,050 14,314 21,364
Accounts receivable, net 60,606 222,345 282,951
Due from other governments 200,877 262,020 462,897
Inventories 34,703 - 34,703
Prepaid items 13,524 8,821 20,345
Restricted cash and cash eguivalents 356,137 31,821 387,958
Total current assets 2,507,820 5,313,161 7,820,981
Capital assefs;
Water rights - 3,686,841 3,686,841
Wastewater treatment rights, net - 2,788,575 2,788,575
Land and other nondepreciable assets 2,991,345 32,187 3,023,532
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 3,406,314 7,183 857 10,580,171
Total capital assets 6,397,659 13,691,460 20,089,119
Total assets 5 8,905,479 $ 19004621 $ 27910100
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5 355,773 3 126,243 % 482,015
Accrued interest payable 298 6,373 6,671
Customer deposits 200 31,821 32,021
Gift cards outstanding 14,747 - 14,747
Loyalty rewards to be redeemed 32,548 - 32,548
Unearned revenues 14,240 - 14,240
Current portion of long-term liabilities 87,220 122,071 209,291
Total current liabilitizs 505,026 286,508 791,534
Long-term liabilities:
Due in more than one year 69,473 1,805,393 1,974,866
Total liabiities 574,499 2,191,901 2,766,400
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,345 439 11,703,446 18,048,885
Restricted for:
Capital projects 113,674 - 113,674
Stabilization by State Statute 261,483 - 261,483
Public services 274,485 - 274 485
Unrestricted 1,335,899 5,109,274 6,445,173
Total net assets $ 8,330,980 $ 16,812,720 $ 25,143,700

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Qperating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental aclivities:
General government b 812,198 3 9,196 3 - 3
Public services 586,360 109,419 131,939
Public safety 792,242 - -
Recrealion 1,518,271 999,735 75,061
Interest on long-term debt 4,040 - -
Total governmental activilies 3,713,111 1,118,350 207,000
Business-type aclivilies:
Water and sewer 2,759,649 2,859,258 -
Tolal primary government 3 6,472,760 b 3.977 608 3 207,000 $

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Other taxes
Investment income, unrestricted
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Tolal general revenues
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning

Nel assets - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of ihis stalement. -16-



Exhibit 2

Net Revenue {Expense) and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

(803,002) $ - $ {803,002
(345,002) - (345,002)
(792,242) - (702,242)
(443,475) (443,475)
(4,040 - {4.040)
(2,387,761 - (2,387,761)
- 99,609 99.609
(2.387,761) 99.609 (2,288,152)
1,548,994 - 1,548,994
776,492 - 776,492
8,706 21,250 29,958
2,202 2,202
758,426 {758,428) -
3,004.820 {(737.178) 2,357 644
707,059 (637,567) 69,492
7,623,921 17,450,287 25,074,208
8,330,980 $ 16,812,720 $  25143,700
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 3
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

Major Fund Non-Majer Fund Total
Wrenn Miller Governmental
ASSETS General Fund Capital Project Fund Funds
Cash and cash equivalenis 5 1,762 830 % 32,222 % 1,795,112
Restricted casn 356,137 - 355,137
Taxes receivable, net 39,811 - 39,811
Accounis receivable 60,6086 “ 60,606
Due from other governments 200,877 - 200,877
Inventories 34703 - 34,703
Prepaid iterns 13,524 - 13,524
Total assets g 2,468,548 5 32,222 3 2,500,770
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilives:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3 355,773 3 - 3 355,773
Customer deposils 200 - 200
Gift cards outstanding 14,747 - 14,747
Loyalty rewards to be redeemed 32,548 - 32,548
Deferred revenues 54,051 - 54,051
Total liabilities 457,319 - 457,319
Fund balances:;
MNonspendable;
Inventories 34,703 - 34,703
Prepaid items 13,524 - 13,524
Restricted:
Stabilization by State Statute 261,483 - 261,483
Streets 274 485 - 274 485
Committed:
Capital projects 81,452 - 81,452
Assigned;
Recreation . 32,222 32,222
Subsequent year's expenditures 17,800 - 17.800
Unassigned 1,327,782 - 1.327,782
Total fund balances 2011,229 32,222 2,043,451
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,458,548 $ 32,222

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore 6,397,659
not reported in the funds.

QOther assets {interest receivable} are not available to pay for current expenditures 7,050
and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Liabilities for earned but deferred revenues (property taxes receivable) in fund statements. 39,811

Some liatilitles are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds:

Installment purchases payable 3 52,220

Qther postemployment benefits 24,790

Compensaled absences payable 78,683

Accrued interest payable 298 (156,891)
Net Assels of Governmental Activilies 5 8,330,980

—_

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN CF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 4
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012
Major Fund Non-Major Fund Total
Wrenn Miller Governmental
General Fund Capital Project Fund Funds
Revenuas:
Ad valorem taxes S 1,637,721 S - § 1,537,721
Unrestricted intergovernmenlal 910,822 - 810,822
Restricled intergovernmenlal 184,362 - 184,362
Permits and fees 966,347 - 886,347
Investment income 4,770 3 4773
Miscellaneous 21.013 = 21,013
Tolal revenues 3,645,035 3 3,645,038
Expendilures:
Current;
General governmenl 772,502 - 772,502
Public services 515,389 - 515,389
Public safety 765,714 - 765,714
Recreation 1,396,903 - 1,396,903
Debl Service:
Principal 78,281 - 78,281
Interest 4 545 - 4,545
Capital outlay - 3.781 3,781
Tetal expenditures 3,533,334 3,781 3,537,115
Excess (deficiency) of ravenuas over expenditures 111,701 (3,778) 107,923
Other financing sources and (uses).
Sale of capital assels 1,500 - 1,500
Insurance recovery 4,153 - 4153
Payment of interest on advance from Waler & Sewer Fund (12,195) - (12,195}
Transfer from other funds 758,426 36,000 794,426
Transfer 1o other funds (36,000) - (36,000}
Total other financing scurces and {uses) 715,884 36,000 751,664
Net change in fund balances 827,585 32,222 659,807
Fund balances at beginning of year 1,200,173 - 1,200,173
Change in reserve for invenicries (16,529) - {16,529}
Fund balances at end of year $ 2,014,229 3 32,222 § 2043451

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 4
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND Continued
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities:

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ 859,807
Change in fund balance due tc change in reserve for inventory (16,529)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the
statement of aclivities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense, This is the amount by which
depreciafion {$242,822) exceaded capital outlay {$3,781) in the current pericd. {239,041}

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
is to decrease net assets. (2,228)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial

resources are not reporied as revenues in the funds.
Change in deferred revenue for tax revenues 11,273
Change in accrued investment interest 3,833

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmenta! funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net assets.
Repayment of principal of long-term debt 78,280

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Change in accrued interest expense 506
Change in accrued interest payable to other fund 12,195
Change in other postemployment benefits (3,961)
Compensated absences 2,824
Changes in net assets of governmental activities % 707,059

—_— 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CARCLINA Exhibit 5
GENERAL FUND AND ANNUALLY BUDGETED GENERAL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Varlance
With Final
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Ad valerem laxes $ 1,553,500 $ 1,553,500 $ 1,537,721 8 {15,779)
Unrestricted intergovernmental 909,680 898,980 910,622 11,842
Restricled intergovernmental 91,000 211,140 184,362 (26,778)
Services and fees 999,300 999,330 986,347 (12,983)
Invesiment income 10,000 10,000 4717 (5,283)
Miscellaneous 3,530 23,560 21,013 (2,547)
Totlal revenues 3,567,010 3,696.510 3,644,982 {51,528)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 757,045 815,045 772,502 42,543
Public services 557,420 633,160 515,389 117,771
Public safety 755,900 800,900 765,714 35,186
Recrealion 1,497,145 1,505,340 1,396,903 108,446
Debt service 83,500 83,500 82,826 674
Total expendilures 3,692,010 3,837.954 3,533,334 304,620
Revenues cver {under) expendilures (125,000} (141,444) 111,648 253,002
Cther financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets - - 1,500 1,500
Insurance recovery - 4,153 4,153 -
Repayment of principal to Water & Sewer Fund (43,250) - - -
Paymeni of infterest on advance from W & S (33,750) (12,185) {12,195) -
Transfer from Water & Sewer Fund - 12,195 758,426 746,231
Transfer from General Capital Reserve Fund 77,000 - - -
Transfer to General Capilal Reserve Fund {115,000 (115,000) (114,854) 146
Total olher financing scurces {uses) (115,000} {110.847) 637,030 747,877
Fund balance approprialed 240,000 252,291 - {252,291}
Net change in fund balance 5 - 3 - 748,678 5 748,678
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,197,628
Change in reserve for invenlories {16.529)
Fund balance at end of year $  1,929.777

A legally budgeled General Capital Reserve
Fund is consolidated inlo the General Fund
for reporting purposes;

Interest income 53

Transfer from General Fund 114,854

Transfer to Wrenn Miller Capital Project Fund {36,000}
Fund Balance, Beginning 2,545
Fund Balance, Ending (Exhibit 4) 3 2011229

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROCLINA

Exhibit 6

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable - unbilled
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Capital assels:
Water rights, net
Wastewater treatment rights, net
Land and other nondepreciable assets
Cther capital assets, net of depreciation

Total capital assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposits
Compensated absences, current
Currant portion of amount owed on Odor Control project
Current portion of amount owed to PTRWA

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Noncurrent portion of amount owed on Odor Control project
Noncurrent portion of amount owed to PTRWA
OPEB liability
Compensated absences

Totat noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Tota! net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Enterprise Funds
Major
Water and
Sewer

5 4,775,840
14,314

152,672

69,673

262,020

8,821

31,821

5,313,161

3,688,841
2,788,575

32,187
7.183,857

13,691,460

$ 19,004,621

3 126,243
6,373

31,821

10,000

21,031

91,040

286,508

341,762
1,534,181
8,263
21,187

1,905,393

2,191,901

11,703,446
5,109,274

$ 16,812,720




TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 7
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Operating revenues;
Charges for sales and services

Enterprise Funds

Major

Water and
Sewer

3 2,838,304

Other operating revenues 20,954
Total operating revenues 2,859,258
Operating expenses;

Salaries and employee henefits 538,560

Professional services 9,250

Contracted services 79,383

Contractual payment for wastewater treatment 518,049

Supplies and materials 496,600

Purchase of water 247583

Repairs and maintenance 140,384

Other ogerating expenditures 73,243

Depreciation and amortization 520,882
Total operating expenses 2,623,934
Operating income 235,324
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Paymenis to PTRWA (25,664)

Refinancing expense (55,619)

Investment income 21,250

Interest expense (54,432)
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) (114,465}
Income before transfers 120,859

Transfer to other funds (758,426)
Change in net assets (637,567)
Total net assets, beginning 17,450,287

Total net assets, ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 8
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from cuslomers

Enterprise Funds
Major
Water and
Sewer

3 2,856,173

Cash paid for goods and services (1,497,043)
Cash paid to employees for services (538,522)
Customer deposils refundad (7,892)
Customer deposits received 13,222
Other operating revenues 20,954
Net cash provided by operaling adlivities 846,892
Cash flows from noncapilal financing activilies:
Payment to Piedmont Triad Regional Water Authority (25,664)
Transfer to other funds {12,195}
Nel cash used by noncapitai financing activities {37,859)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (181,693)
Principal and interest payments on long-term amounts owed {o PTRWA (134,899)
Principal and inlerest payments on long-term amounts owed for Odor Controi (21.768)
Net cash used by capital and relaled financing activillies (338,360}
Cash fiows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends 24,311
Net cash provided by investing acfivilies 24,311
Nel increase in cash and cash equivalenis 494,984
Cash and cash equivalenis ai beginning of year 4,312,677
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year % 4,807 661

Reconcilialion of cash and cash equivalents at end of year:
Cash and cash equivalenls

3 4,775,840

Resfricled cash and cash equivalents 31,821
$ 4.807 661
Reconciliation of operating income 1o net cash provided
by operaling activities:
Cperaling income 3 235,324
Adjusiments fo reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operaling aclivilies:
Depreciation and amortization 520,882
Change in assels and liabilities:
Decrease in accounts receivable 53,439
Increase in prepaid ilems (489)
Increase in accounts payabfe and accrued liabililies 28,531
Increase in customer deposils 5,330
Increase in compensated absences 2,555
Increase In OPEB liability 1,320
Net cash provided by operaling aclivities 3 846,852

Noncash invesling, capital, and financing aclivites:

Increase in commitment to PTRWA - refinancing expense

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Town of Jamestown (the “Town”) conform to generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of
the more significant accounting policies:

Reporting Entity

The Town of Jamestown is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected mayor
and a four-member council.

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the primary government. These statements include the financial
activities of the overall government. Eliminations, if applicable, are made to minimize the
double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the Town. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the different business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the
Town's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the
statement of activities. Program revenues inciude (a) fees and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are
presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the
Town's funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental and
proprietary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are to be aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating
revenues, such as subsidies, result from non-exchange transactions. Other non-operating
revenues are ancillary activities such as investment earnings.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(Continued)

B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

The Town reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, state and federal
grants, various other taxes and licenses and golf course fees. The primary expenditures
are for public safety, street maintenance and construction, sanitation services,
recreation (including golf course) and general government administration. Additionally,
the Town has legally adopted a General Capital Reserve Fund. Under GASB 54
guidance the General Capital Reserve Fund is consolidated in the General Fund. The
budgetary comparison for the General Capital Reserve Fund has been included in the
supplemental information.

The Town reports the following non-major governmental fund.

Wrenn-Miller Capital Project Fund — This fund is used to account for the construction
of a new downtown park.

The Town reports the following major enterprise fund:

Water and Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for the Town’s water and sewer
operations. The Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund and the Randleman Reservoir
Capital Reserve Fund are consolidated in the Water and Sewer Fund. The budgetary
comparisons for the Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund and the Randleman
Reservoir Capital Reserve Fund have been included in the supplemental information.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained
during the year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
eamed and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include
property taxes, grants and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
good, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3} capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’'s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the Town enterprise funds are charges to customers for
sales and services. The Town also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees
intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water and sewer system.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under installment purchase agreements are reported as other
financing sources.

The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-
end, except for property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue
because the amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are
materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the
operations of the subsequent year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, state law altered the
procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor
vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Guilford County is
responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on
behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the Town of
Jamestown. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system, property taxes are
due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are
applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore, the Town's vehicle
taxes for vehicles registered in Guilford County from March 2011 through February 2012
apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, Uncollected taxes that were billed during this
pericd are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred
revenues.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting {Continued)

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities franchise tax,
collected and held by the state at year end on behalf of the Town are recognized as
revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to
accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues
which are unearned at year end are recorded as unearned revenues. Under the terms of
grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the
program. It is the Town's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such
programs, and then by general revenues.

As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the Town has elected to apply
only applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30,
1989 that do not contradict GASB pronouncements in its accounting and reporting
practices for its proprietary operations.

Budgetary Data

The Town'’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An
annual budget is adopted for the General Fund and the Enterprise Funds. All annual
appropriations lapse at the fiscal year end. All budgets are prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the
departmental level for all annually budgeted funds and at the object level for multi-year
funds. The Town Manager is authorized to transfer appropriations between departments
up to $25,000; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of a fund or
department more than $25,000 must be approved by the governing board. During the
year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary, the effects of which were
not material. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the
governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual
ordinance can be adopted.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the Town are made in Board-designated official depositories and are
secured as required by state law [G. S. 159-31]. The Town may designate, as an
official depository, any bank or savings and loan association whose principal office is
located in North Carclina. Also, the Town may establish time deposit accounts such
as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of
deposit.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

State law [G. S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United
States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United
States; obligations of the state of North Carclina; bonds and notes of any North
Carolina local government or public authoerity; obligations of certain nonguaranteed
federal agencies; certain high gquality issues of commercial paper and bankers’
acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). The
Town’s investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices.
The securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, an SEC-registered (2a-7) money market
mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT's share price.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment
and to maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are
essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents.

Restricted Assets

Customer deposits held by the Town before any services are supplied are restricted to
the service for which the deposit was collected. Monies in the General Capital
Reserve Fund, the Wrenn-Miller Capital Project Fund, the Water and Sewer Capital
Reserve Fund and the Randleman Reservoir Capital Reserve Fund are also classified
as restricted because their use is restricted for capital purposes per resolutions of the
Town Council. Powell Bill funds are classified as restricted cash because it can be
expended only for the purposes of maintaining, repairing, constructing, reconstructing
or widening of local streets per G.S. 136-41.1 through 136-41.4.

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with state law [G. S. 105-347 and G. S. 159-13(a)], the Town levies ad
valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July 1st, the beginning of the
fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1st (lien date); however, interest does
not accrue until the following January 6th. These taxes are based on the assessed
values as of January 1, 2011. As allowed by state law, the Town has established a
schedule of discounts that apply to taxes that are paid prior to the due date. In the
Town’'s General Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such discounts.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the
percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years, as well as including
specific accounts believed to be uncollectible.

-29 -



TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

B.

Inventory and Prepaid ltems

The inventories of the General Fund are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out)
or market and consist of goods held for resale. The cost of these inventories is
recorded as an expense as the inventories are consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting perieds and

are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements
and expensed as the items are used.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost
of more than a certain amount and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.

Minimum capitalization costs are as follows:

Cost
Land $ 100
Land improvements 5,000
Buildings and improvements 20,000
Vehicles, furniture and equipment 5,000
Infrastructure 50,000

Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at time of
donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of
the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

As a part of the implementation of GASB Statement 34, the Town is permitted to forgo
the retroactive reporiing of governmental infrastructure networks. The Town has
chosen to do so,
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

Capital assets are amortized or depreciated using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives:

Useful Life
Wastewater treatment rights, water rights and other
intangible assets 20 to 40 years
Land improvements, buildings and infrastructure 20 to 50 years
Furniture, fixtures, equipment, heavy equipment
and vehicles 51to 10 years
Computer equipment and software 3to 5years

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the Town provides for the accumulation of up to thirty (30) days
earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the
Town's government-wide and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for
compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is
eamned. The Town has assumed a first-in, first-out method of using accumulated
compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next
fiscal year has been designated as a current liability in the government-wide financial
statements.

The Town’s sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick
leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of
retirement may be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit
purposes. Since the Town has no obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is
actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NCRTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

10. Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net Assets

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified
as invested in capital assets, net of related debt, restricted; and unrestricted.
Restricted net assets represent constraints on resources that are either externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, confributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five
classifications designed to disciose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund
balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows;

Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that cannot be
spent because they are either {(a) not in spendable form or (b} legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact.

Inventories — portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because
it represents the year-end balance of ending inventories, which are not
spendable resources.

Prepaid items — portion of fund balance that is not an available resource
because it represents the year-end balance of costs applicable to future
accounting pericds, which are neot spendable resources.

Restricted Fund Balance ~ This classification includes amounts that are restricted to
specific purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute — portion of fund balance that is
restricted by State Statute (G.8. 159-8(a)).

Restricted for Streets — Powell Bill portion of fund balance that is restricted by

revenue source for street construction and maintenance expenditures. This
amount represents the balance of the total unexpended Powell Bill funds.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

Committed Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that can cnly be used for specific
purposes imposed by majority vote by quorum of the Town of Jamestown’s
governing body (highest level of decision-making authority). Any changes or
removal of specific purpose requires majority action by the governing body.

Committed for capital projects — portion of fund balance assigned by the
Council for future capital projects.

Assigned Fund Balance — portion of fund balance that Town of Jamestown intends to
use for specific purposes.

Subseqguent year’s expenditures — portion of fund balance that is appropriated
in the next year's budget that is not already classified in restricted or
committed. The governing body approves the appropriation: however the
budget ordinance authorizes the manager to modify the appropriations by
resource of appropriation within funds up to $25,000.

Unassigned Fund Balance — the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes or other funds.

The Town of Jamestown has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for
programs with multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in
the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-town
funds, town funds. For purposes of fund balance classification expenditures are to be
spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by committed fund balance,
assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer has
the authcrity to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the Town.

The Town of Jamestown has also adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the
general fund which instructs management to conduct the business of the Town in such
a manner that available fund balance is at least equal to or greater than 50% of its
population group average available fund balance.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 2. Detail Notes on Ali Funds

A. Assets

1.

Deposits

All the deposits of the Town are either insured or collateralized by using one of two
methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the federal
depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the
Town’'s agent in the Town's name, Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral
pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is
acting in a fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are considered to be held by
the Town’s agent in the Town’s name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based
on an approved averaging method for non-interest-bearing deposits and the actual
current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method
report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering
uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the
Town or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of
collateral pledged for the Town under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for
undercollateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows.

However, the State Treasurer of North Carclina enforces strict standards of financial
stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling
Method. The Town has no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits,
but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitalization for all
pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for compliance. The Town
complies with the provisions of G.S 159-31 when designating official depositories and
verifying that deposits are properly secured.

At June 30, 2012, the Town’s deposits had a carrying amount of $5,267,804, and a
bank balance of $5,563,295. Of the bank balance, $665,495 was covered by federal
depository insurance and the remainder was covered by collateral held under the
Pooling Method. The Town had $1,100 of petty cash on hand at June 30, 2012.

Investments

At June 30, 2012, the Town of Jamestown had $1,690,006 invested with the North
Carolina Capital Management Trust's Cash Portfolio which carried a credit rating of
AAAmM by Standard and Poor’s. The Town has no formal policy regarding credit risk.
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012

Note 2.

Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Assets (Continued)

3. Receivables

Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2012 were as follows:

Due from Accrued
Other Interest
_Accounts  __ Taxes = Governments _ Total Receivable
Governmental activities:
General $ 61,021 $ 63,511 $ 200,877 $ 325409 7,050
Allowance for doubtful accounts {415} {23.700) - (24,115) -
Total governmental activities 3 60,606 3 39.811 § 200877 $ 301,294 7.050
Business-type activities:
Water and Sewer $ 230,624 $ - $ 262,020 $ 402,644 14,314
Allowance for doubtful accounts (8,279) - - (B.279) -

Total business-type activities

4. Due from Governmental Agencies

Amounts due from governmental agencies consist of the following:

§ 222345 & - 3 269020 3 484365 2§ 14314

County State Total
General Fund
Sales and use tax distribution $ - $ 87,631 $ 87,631
Reimbursement from NCDOT 7,056 7,056
Gibson Park reimbursement 51,493 - 51,493
Sales tax refunds - 54 697 54,697
3 51,493 $ 149384 $ 200877
Water and Sewer Fund
Adams Farm sewer $ 261,184 $ - $ 261,184
Sales tax refunds - 836 836
$__ 261,184 3 836 $ 262020
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 2.

Detail Notes on All Funds {Continued)

Assets (Continued)

5. Capital Assels

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Govemmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Construction-in-progress

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements
Infrastructure — roads

Buildings

Equipment and vehicles

Total capital assets being
Depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Infrastructure — roads

Buildings

Equipment and vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Governmental activity capital
assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balances Increases Decreases Balances
$ 2,131,740 % - 8 - % 2,131,740
855824 3.781 - 859,605
2.987.564 5 3,781 % - 2.991.345
3,007,138 $ - $ - 3,007,138
165,400 - - 165,400
3,549,585 - - 3,549,585
1,402,945 - (48.164) 1,354,781
8.125.068 $ - $ {48,164 8.076.904
1,933,668 $ 75,794 $ - 2,009 462
11,269 11,027 - 22,296
1,421,836 81,940 - 1,603,776
1,106,931 74,061 (45,936) 1.135.056
4473704 $_ 242 822 5 (45936) 4 670,590
3,651,364 3,406.314
$ 6.638.928 $ 6,397,659

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as

follows:

General government
Public services

Public safety

Culture and Recreation
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012

Note 2,

Detail Notes on All Funds {Continued)

Assets (Continued)

5. Capital Assets (Continued)

.37 -

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Balances
Business-type activities:
Waler and Sewer Fund:
Capital assets not being amortized or depreciated:
Construction-in-progress $ 10437 & 114.329 (92.579) % 32,187
Capital assets being amortized or depreciated;
Water rights - Reservoir 2,227,921 13,308 2,241,229
Water rights — WTP and lines 1,615,790 - 1,615,790
Wastewater treatment rights 3,450,000 - 3,450,000
Wastewater treatment rights — Cdor Control 420,630 - 420,630
infrastructure — distribution systems 11,306,656 92 579 11,399,275
Buildings 109,493 - 109,493
Equipment 1,109,635 54,056 1.163,691
Total capital assets being amortized or
depreciated 20,240,165 159,843 20,400,108
Less accumulated amortization or
depreciation for:
Water rights — Reservoir 44 558 44,830 89,388
Water rights — WTP and lines 40,395 40,395 80,790
Wastewaler treatment rights 937,969 86,250 1,024,219
Wastewaler treatment rights — Odor Control 36,805 21,031 57,836
Infrasfructure - distribution systems 4,355,802 236,013 4 591,815
Buildings 93,381 1,740 95,121
Equipment 711.043 90,623 801,666
Total accumulated amortization and
depreciation 6219953 § 520,882 6,740,835
Total capital assets being amortized or
depreciated, net 14.020,212 13,659,273
Business-type activities capital
assets, net 414030649 3 _13,691460



TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

Note 2.

Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Assets (Continued)

6. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets at June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:

Water Rights

The Town, in conjunction with five other governments, entered into a joint governmental
agreement with the Piedmont Triad Regional Water Authority (PTRWA). PTRWA was
established to construct a dam facility, water treatment plant and related distributicn lines.
According to the joint governmental agreement, the participating governments do not have an
equity interest in the joint venture, but rather rights to water in the reservoir. The participating
governments have the right to purchase future treated water based upon their pre-determined
share, according to a uniform rate structure set by PTRWA. Accordingly, intangible assets
have been recorded at cost in the government-wide financial statements at June 30, 2012. An
intangible asset for the Town’s portion of the dam and reservoir cost, in the amount of
$2,241,229, is being amortized over 50 years using the straight-line method. An intangible
asset for the Town’s portion of the water treatment plant and distribution lines cost, in the
amount of $1,615,790, is being amortized over 40 years using the straight-line method.

Water Treatment
Dam & Reservoir Plant & Lines Total
Rights purchased $2,241,229 $1,615,790 $3,857,019
Accumulated amortization (89,388) (80.790) (170,178)
Unamortized balance $2.151.841 $1,535000 $3,686,841
Future amortization is as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2013 $ 44830 $40,395 $85,225
2014 44 830 40,395 85,225
2015 44 830 40,395 85,225
2016 44 830 40,395 85,225
2017 44 830 40,395 85,225
Thereafter 1,827 .691 1,333,025 3.260,716

$2,151,841 $1,535,000 $3.686,841
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Note 2. Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued)

A. Assets (Continued)

6. Intangible Assets (continued)

Wastewater Treatment Rights

The Town entered into a joint-use facility agreement with the City of High Point on May 31,
2000. The agreement required the Town to pay $3,450,000 for its share of the capacity- use
allocation to upgrade and expand the Eastside Wastewater Treatment Plant. This cost is
being amortized over 40 years using the straight-line method.,

The Town also entered into an agreement with the City of High Point on September 15, 2009
to participate in its share of the cost of an upgrade project (Cdor Control} to the Eastside
Wastewater Treatment Plant. The Town's portion of the cost for this project is $420,630, and
is being amortized over 20 years using the straight-line methed.

Eastside Expansion Odor Control  Total

Rights purchased $3,450,000 $420,630 $3,870,630
Accumulated amortization (1,024 219) {(57,836) (1.082.055)
Unamontized balance 2,4257 $362,794 $2,788575

Future amortization is as follows:

Year Ending June 30,

2013 $ 86,250 $21,031 $107,281
2014 86,250 21,031 107,281
2015 86,250 21,031 107,281
2016 86,250 21,031 107,281
2017 86,250 21,031 107,281
Thereafter 1,994,531 257,639  2.252.170
$2425781 $362794 $2788,575

7. Construction Commitment

The Town entered into an agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation
in June 2012 for a water line to be constructed by the Depariment's construction contractor.
The Town shall reimburse the Department for the water line costs, estimated to be
approximately $200,000.
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Note 2. Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued}

B. Liabilities
1. Payables

Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2012, were as follows:

Salaries and Accrued
Vendors Benefits Total Interest
Governmental activities:
General $339280 $ 16493 § 355773 & 298

Business-type activities:

Water and Sewer $118,083 % 8,160 $ 126,243 $ 6,373

2. Pension Plan and Postemployment Obligations

Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description. The Town of Jamestown contributes to the statewide Local
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the state of North Carolina.
LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Article 3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carcolina. The state’s CAFR includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling {919) 981-5454,

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 6% of their annual covered
salary. The Town is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the
Town, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement is 7.07% of annual
covered payroll.  The contribution requirements of members and of the Town of
Jamestown are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Town's contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011
and 2010 were $88,508, $80,223, and $63,137, respectively. The contributions made by
the Town equaled the required contributions for each year.
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Note 2. Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued)

B. Liabilities {Continued)

2.

Pension Plan and Postemployment Obligations (Continued)

State 401(k) Supplemental Retirement Income Plan

The Town, upon the approval of the Town Council, has elected to include all permanent,
fuil-time employees under the State 401(k) Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan},
a defined contribution pension plan, administered by the NC Department of State
Treasurer and sponsored by the State of North Carolina. Participation begins 90 days
after the date of employment. Article 5 of General Statute 135 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carclina General Assembly.
General Statute 135-93(b) assigns authority to the state and any of its political
subdivisions to make contributions on behalf of its members. In a defined contribution
plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment
earnings. The Town has elected to contribute each month an amount equal to 4.5% of
each participant's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also,
participants may make voluntary contributions to the plan.

The Town’s contributions were calculated using a covered payroll amount of $1,181,247.
Total contributions for the year ended June 30, 2012 were $93,997, which consisted of
$53,156 from the Town and $40,841 from employees. The Town'’s contributions and the
employees’ voluntary contributions represent 4.5% and 3.5%, respectively, of the
covered payroll amount.

Other Postemployment Benefits — Healthcare Benefits

Plan Description. Under approval by Town Council in January 1999, and amended in
QOctober 2006, the Town administers a single-employer defined benefit Healthcare
Benefits Plan (the HCB Plan). This plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to
retirees of the Town, hired before October 17, 2006, provided they participate in the
North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (System) and have
at least twenty years of creditable service with the Town. Through June 30, 2011, the
Town paid the full cost of coverage for these benefits through private insurers. Effective
from July 1, 2011 forward, the Town pays premiums of $900 per month per retiree. Also,
the Town's retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the Town's retiree
group rates. The Town Council may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report
was not issued for the plan.
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Note 2.

B.

Detail Notes on All Funds {Continued)

Liabilities (Continued)

Other Postemployment Benefits — Healthcare Benefits (continued)

Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the foliowing at December 31, 2010, the date
of the latest actuarial valuation:

Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 5

Terminated plan members entitied to but not yet receiving

benefits 0

Active plan members 23
Total 28

Funding Policy. The Town pays the full cost of coverage for the healthcare benefits paid
to qualified retirees under a Town Council approval that can also be amended by Town
Council. The Town has chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay as you go
basis.

The current ARC rate is 6.02% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the Town
contributed $54,000 or 5.44% of annual covered payroll. The Town obtains healthcare
coverage through private insurers. Retirees contributed $1,914 towards premiums and
$12,589 for dependent coverage. The Town's obligation to contribute to HCB Plan is
established and may be amended by the Town Council.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Postemployment expenditures are made
from the fund in which the retiree was paid from before retiring. No funds are set aside to
pay benefits and administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Town's annual OPEB cost (expense)
is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected
to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding
excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The table on the following page shows
the components of the Town's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’'s net OPEB obligation for the healthcare
benefits.
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Note 2. Detail Notes on All Funds {Continued)

B. Liabilities (Continued)

Other Postemployment Benefits — Healthcare Benefits (continued)

Annual required contribution $ 59,714
Interest on net OPEB ohbligation 1,111
Adjustment to annual required contribution (1,544)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 59,281
Contributions made by Town (54,000)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 5,281
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 27,772
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 33,053

The Town's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2012 were as follows:

3 Year Trend Information

For Year Annual Percentage of

Ended OPEB Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
June 30 Cost Contributed Obligation
2010 $58,918 70.8% $17,177
2011 58,650 81.9% 27,772
2012 56,281 91.1% 33,053

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2010, the most recent
actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for
benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $642,100. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $959,055,
and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 67.0 percent. Actuarial valuations of
an ongeing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions
of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.
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B.

Detail Notes on All Funds {Continued)

Liabilities (Continued)

Other Postemployment Benefits — Healthcare Benefits (continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumplions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and
the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2010 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost
method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of
return (net of administrative expenses), which is the expected iong-term investment
returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the
plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 10.50 to 5.00
percent annually. The investment rate included a 3.00 percent inflation assumption. The
actuarial value of assets, if any, was determined using technigues that spread the effects
of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a 5 year period. The UAAL
is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll ocn an open basis. The
remaining amortization period at December 31, 2010, was 30 years.

Other Emplaoyment Benefit

The Town has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit
Plan for members of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Death
Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a
one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service
after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after
retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing
membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits,
Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’'s 12
highest months salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but
the benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be less than $25,000. All death benefit payments
are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The Town has no liability beyond the payment of
monthly contributions. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated
between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. The Town
considers these contributions to be immaterial.

In addition, the Town provides life insurance benefits of $10,000 per employee through
the Municipal Insurance Trust .
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Note 2. Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued)

B. Liabilities (Continued)

4.

Deferred/Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred/unearned revenues in the General Fund at year end is
comprised of the following elements:;

Deferred Unearned

Revenues Revenues Total
Property taxes 3 39,811 % - $ 39,811
Other - 14.240 14,240

5 39,811 $ 14,240 § 54,051

Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The Town carries commercial insurance coverage which provides for the following types
of major coverage for the amounts of retained risk noted: general liability ($5,000,000),
worker's compensation ($1,000,000) and public officials’ liability ($1,000,000). There
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years.

Because the Town has structures in one location that has been mapped and designated
an “A” area (an area close to a river, lake or stream) by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency, the Town is eligible to purchase coverage through the National
Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP) for these structures. The Town has opted not to purchase
this insurance. The contents of the buildings are covered under other insurance.

[n accordance with G.S 159-29, the Town’s employees that have access to $100 or more
at any given time of the Town’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial
surety bond. The finance officer is individually bonded for $50,000. The remaining
employees that have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $20,000.
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Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued)

B. Liabilities (Continued)

6.

Commitments — Business-type Activities

The Town has entered into an agreement with the Piedmont Triad Regional Water
Authority to assist in the repayment of debt for the construction of the Randleman
Reservoir water treatment plant. Under the terms of the original agreement, the Town
was obligated to pay approximately $2,495,000 to the Authority over a twenty-year period
beginning in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. In fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the
Authority refunded their debt, resulting in an addition of $55,619 to principal amount owed
by the Town and a savings of approximately $264,000 in interest paid during the
remaining years. Future estimated payments to the Authority are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2013 $91,040 31,197 122,237
2014 80,538 41,640 122,237
2015 82,829 39,408 122,237
2016 85,123 37,115 122,237
2017 87,480 34,758 122,237
Next 5 years 475,102 136,085 611,187
Next 5 years 544 623 66,564 611,187
Thereafter 178,427 4 929 183,356

$1,625 221 $ 391,695 $2.016 916

In addition, the Town is obligated to pay the Town’s pro rata share (2.5%) of the
Authority's annual operating budget.

The Town has entered into an agreement with the City of High Point to pay its share of the
cost of the Odor Control project for the Eastside Treatment Plant. Under the terms of this
agreement, the Town is obligated to pay $438,322 to the City of High Point over a twenty-

year period beginning in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Future estimated payments to
the City of High Paint are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2013 $21,031 737 21,768
2014 21,031 737 21,768
2015 21,031 737 21,768
2016 21,031 737 21,768
2017 21,031 737 21,768
Next 5 years 105,157 4,207 109,364
Next 5 years 105,157 5,021 110,178
Thereafter 47,324 2.681 50.005

$362,793 $15.594 $ 378,387
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B. Liabilities (Continued)

7. Long-Term Obligations

a.

Operating Leases
The Town leases golf carts and other equipment under noncancelable operating

leases terminating in fiscal years 2013 through 2016. Total expenditures on
operating leases amounted to $117,827 during fiscal year 2012.

As of June 30, 2012, future minimum commitments for operating leases were as
follows:

Year Ending June 30,

2013 104,040
2014 102,544
2015 102,544
2016 55,315

Total future minimum
lease payments $ 364,444
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B. Liabilities (Continued)

7. Long-Term Obligations {continued)

b. Installment Purchase Agreements

The Town has entered into installment purchase agreements with High Point Bank &
Trust Company, N.A. as follows.

Governmental Activities:

Note payable to High Point Bank, executed October
2007 at $123,739, interest and principal payable in
20 quarterly installments of $6,894 each with
interest payable at 4.15%, secured by a leaf truck. $13,546

Note payable to High Point Bank, executed May
1998 at $248,222, interest and principal payable in
180 monthly installments of $3,599 each with
interest payable at 5.1%, unsecured, for purchase

on land. 38,674
52,220
Less current portion 52,220
s -

The future minimum payments on the notes payable as of June 30, 2012 are as

follows:
Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2013 52,220 1.126 53,346

$ 52220 % 1,126  $ 53,346
At June 30, 2012, the Town had a legal debt margin of $31,708,308.
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B. Liabilities (Continued)

7. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

¢. Changesin Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the following changes occurred in long-term

obligations:
Current
Balance Balance Portion of
July 1, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30, 2012 _Balance

Governmental activities:

Instajiment purchases $ 130,500 $ - % 78,280 3 52,220 3 52,220
Compensated absences 82,507 32,451 35,275 79,683 35,000
Net OPEB 20.829 3.961 - 24 790 -

Total governmental activities 3 233836 3 36,412 3 113555 % 156693 $ 87,220

Business-type activities:

Commitment — Odor Control $ 383824 § - % 21,031 $ 362,793 $ 21,031
Commitment — PTRWA 1,633,171 55,619 63,568 1,625,221 91,040
Compensated absences 28,632 11,061 8,508 31,187 10,000
Net OPEB 6.943 1.320 - 8,263 -

Total business-type activities $ 2,082 570 $ 68,000 3 93,106 $ 2,027,464 $122 071

Compensated absences and net OPEB obligations have typically been liquidated in
the General Fund. Total interest expense incurred during the year amounted to
$58,472.

C. Interfund Balances and Activity

Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2012, consist of the following:

From the Water and Sewer Fund to the General Fund $758,426

From the General Capital Reserve Fund to the
Wrenn-Miller Capital Project Fund 36,000
$794,426

During the 2012 fiscal year, the Town made a cne-time transfer of $758,426 from the Water
and Sewer Fund to the General Fund in forgiveness of an advance of $746,231 made in the
2011 fiscal year and interest paid on the advance of $12,195. The Town made a transfer of
$36,000 to begin construction of the Wrenn-Miller down-town park.
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Note 3.

Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued)

D. Fund Balance

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of
General fund balance that is available for appropriation:

Total Fund Balance — General Fund $2,011,229
Less:

Inventories 34,703
Prepaid items 13,524
Stabilization by State Statute 261,483
Streets-Powell Bill 274,485
Capital Projects 81,452
Appropriated Fund Balance in 2013 budget 17,800
Working Capital 1,327,782
Remaining Fund Balance 0

Joint Ventures

The Town, in conjunction with five other governments, has entered into a joint governmental
agreement with the Piedmont Triad Regional Water Authority. The Authority was established
to construct a dam facility, water treatment plant and related distribution lines. The
participating governments are legally obligated under the intergovernmental agreement that
created the Authority to contribute a pre-determined share of the construction costs.
According to the joint governmental agreement, the participating governments do not have an
equity interest in the joint venture, but rather rights to water in the reservoir. The
governments have the right to purchase future treated water based upon their pre-determined
share, according to a uniform rate structure to be set by the Authority. Complete financial
statements for the Authority can be obtained from the Authority’'s administrative offices at
7297 Adams Farm Road, Randieman, North Carolina 27317.
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Note 4.

Note 5,

Jointly Governed Organization

The Town, in conjunction with six counties and 25 other municipalities, established the
Piedmont Triad Regional Council of Governments (Council). The participating
governments established the Council to coordinate various funding received from
federal and state agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to
the Council's governing board. The Town paid membership fees of $744 to the
Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies

Federal- and State-Assisted Programs

The Town has received proceeds from several federal and state grants. Periodic
audits of these grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being
appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the
refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any
required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying
financial statements for the refund of grant monies.
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Required
Supplementary Financial Data

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted accounting
principles.

= Schedule of Funding Progress for the Other Postemployment Benefits.
»  Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Other Postemployment Benefits.

» Notes to the Required Schedules for the Other Postemployment Benefits.

52 -



Town of Jamestown, North Carolina
Other Postemployment Benefits
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL asa
Actuarial Value of -Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Coverec
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b - a) {a/b} {c) (b - a)lc)
12/31/09 $ 622,522 S 522,522 0% % 1,028,379 60.5%
12/31/10 642,100 542,100 0% 959,055 67.0%
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Town of Jamestown, North Carolina
Other Postemploytnont Benefits
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage

June 30 Contribution Contributed
2010 58,918 70.85%
2011 50,714 80,48%
2012 58,714 90.43%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was
determined as part of the actuarial valuation, follows:

Valuation date 12/31/2010

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level Dollar Amount, open
Remaining amortization period 30 Years

Assel valuation method Market value of Assels

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return* 4.00%
Medical cost trend 10.50% - 5.00%
Year of Ultimate trend rate 2018

*Includes inflation at 3.00%
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA Schedule 1
GENERAL FUND Page 1 of 3
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negatlve)
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes:
Taxes § - $ 1,533,564 5 -
interest - 4,157 -
Total 1,553,500 1,537,721 (16,779)
Unresircled intergovernmental:
Local option sales 1ax - 390,615 -
Telecommunications sales tax - 83,036 -
Ulility franchisse tax - 99,938 -
Piped natural gas tax - 49 656 -
Video franchise fee - 44,707 -
Solid waste disposal tax - 2,327 -
ABC distribution - 50,000 -
Beer and wine tax - 14,714 -
Reimbursement from Guilford County - Gibson Park - 175,789 -
Total 898,980 910,822 11,842
Resiricted intergovernmental:
Poweli Bill allocation - 93,582 -
Other state, federal and local grants - 90,780 -
Total 211,140 184,362 (26,778)
Services and fees:
Cell tower franchise fees - 43,786 -
Refuse collection fees - 109,419 -
Planning and development fees - 6,316 -
Rentals - 35,775 -
Golf operalions - 791,051 -
Total 999,330 986,347 (12.983)
Investment income 10,000 4 717 (5.283)
Miscellaneous:
Contributions and donations - 1.611 -
Spoensorships - Golf Course - 18,700 -
Other - 702 -
23,560 21,013 (2.547)
Total revenues 3.696.510 3,644,982 {51,528)

-56 -
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GENERAL FUND Page 2 of 3
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative}
Expenditures:
General government:
Governing Body:
Library coniribution - 115,500 -
Jamestown Swing contribution - 7.000 -
Jameslown Business Association confribution - 500 -
YMCA contribulion - 85,200 -
Professional services B 25756 -
Other operaling expendiiures - 8,332 -
Total 244 250 242,288 1,962
Administralion:
Salaries and employee benefits - 305,575 -
Professional services - 9,250 -
Other operating expenditures - 49,693 -
Total 381,575 364,518 17,057
Planning:
Salaries and employee benefits - 72,937 -
Conlractual services - 2,401 -
Other operating expenditures - 9,215 -
Total 92,670 84,553 8117
Buildings and Grounds:
Employee benefits - retiree - 10,800 -
Other operating expenditures - 70,343 -
Total 96,550 81,143 15,407
Total general government 815,045 772,502 42,543
Public services:
Slreets:
Contractual services - 37,106 -
Other operating expendilures B 113,404 -
Total 201,690 150,510 51,180
Streels - Powell Bill:
Conlraclual services - 145,427 -
Other operating expenditures - 111 -
190,100 145,538 44,562
Sanitation:
Salaries and employee benefils - 56,537 -
Other operaling expenditures - 162,804 -
Total 241,370 219,341 22,029
Total public services 633,160 515,389 117,771
Public safety:
Fire:
Employee benefits - reliree - 10,800 -
Contractual services - 381,445 -
Other operating expenditures - 11,406 -
Total 406,400 403,651 2,749
Police:
Contractual services 394,500 362,063 32,437
Total public safety 800 900 765,714 35,186
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule 1
Page 3 of 3

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Recrealion:
Recreation:
Salaries and employee benefits - 173,387 -
Oiher operaling expenditures - 46,430 -
Totat 234,205 219,817 14,388
Golf Course:
Salaries and employee benefits - 578,063 -
Supplies and materials - 135,783 -
Confraciual services - 3,523 -
Olher operaling expenditures - 292,586 -
Total 1,096,253 1,009,955 86,298
Gibson Park:
Salaries and employee benefils - 137,238 -
Other operaling expenditures - 29,893 -
Total 174,891 167,131 7.760
Tolal recrealion 1,505,349 1,396,903 108,446
Debt Service:
Debt Service:
Oebt prinicpal paymenis - 78,281 -
Debt interest payments - 4,545 -
Totat 83,500 82,826 674
Total expenditures 3.837.954 3,533,334 304,620
Revenues over {under) expenditures (141,444) 111,648 253,092
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capilal assels - 1,500 1,500
Insurance recovery 4,153 4,153 -
Payment of interesi on advance from Water & Sewer Fund (12,195) (12,195) -
Transfer from Water & Sewer Fund 12,195 758,426 746,231
Transfer to General Capital Reserve Fund (115,000) (114,854) 146
Fund balance appropriated 252,291 - (252,291}
Total other financing sources 141,444 637,030 495,586
Revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures - 748,678 748.678
Fund balance:
Begintning of year, July 1 1,197,628
Change in reserve for inventories (16,529)

End of year, June 30
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND Schedule 2
{To be consolidated with the General Fund for presentation purposes)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Nenoperating revenues
Investment income $ 100 $ 53 5 47)
Other financing scurces {uses):
Transfer from General Fund 115,000 114,854 (146)
Transfer to Other Governmental Funds (113,000} (36,000) 77,000
Reserve for future expenditures {2,100) - 2,100
Tofal other financing sources (uses) (100) 78,854 78,954
Revenues and other sources over
other uses g - $ 78,907 $ 78,907
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - WRENN-MILLER PARK
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues:
PARTF grant
Foresiry granl
Donalicns
Investment income
Toal revenues
Expendiuras:
Capita! oullay - engineering
Capital oullay - land improvements
Toal expenditures
Revenues under expendilures
Other financing sources:
Transfers from other funds:
General Capital Reserve Fund

Tolal olher financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fung balance:
Beginning cf year, July 1

End of year, June 30

Project Actual Variance
Author- Prior Current Total to Positive
ization Year Year Date {Negative)
5 100,000 5 - 3 - 3 - 5 {100,000}
15,000 - - - {15,000)
4,000 . - - {4,000}
100 - 3 3 [97)
3 119,100 3 - $ 3 3 §  (119,097)
20,000 - 345 345 19,655
180,000 - 3,436 3,436 176,564
200,000 - 3,781 3,781 196,219
(80,900) - {3,778) (3,778) 77,122
80,900 - 36,000 36,000 {44,900)
80,900 - 36,000 36,000 {44,800}
5 - 3 - 32,222 3 32,222 5 32222

$

32,222
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA Schedule 4
WATER AND SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budgst Actual [Negalive)
Revenues:
QOperaling revenues:
Charges for services:
Water sales 3 774,500 3 788,552 3 14,052
Sewer service charges 1,810.000 2,049,752 232,752
Total 2,584 500 2,838,304 253,804
Other operaling revenues 20,600 20,954 364
Tolal operaling revenues 2,605.100 2,858,258 254,158
Nonoperaling revenues;
Interesl income 10,000 15,472 5472
Total revenues 2,615,100 2,874,730 259,630
Expendilures:
Salaries and employee benefils - 534 685 -
Prolessicnal senvices - 9250 -
LConlracled services - 79382 -
Conlraclya! payment for waslewater lrealment - 518,049 -
Supplies and malerials - 496,600 -
Purchase and transmlssion of water - 247,563 -
Repeirs and mainlenance - 140,384 _
Other operating expendilures - 73,243 -
Piedmonl Triad Regional Waler Aulhority operaling expendilures - 25,664 -
Paymenls on Qdor Control project - 21,768 -
Capilal oullay - 168,385 -
Tolal sxpendiiures 2,794 550 2,314 9p4 479 556
Revenues over {under) expendiiures {179,450} 559,736 739,186
Olher financing uses:
Transfer lo Gengral Fund - (758,426) -
Transier to Randleman Reservoir Fund - (54,000} -
Transfer lo Waler and Sewer Capilal Reserve Fund - {326,103} -
Telal other financlng uses (1,150.231) (1,138,529) 11,702
Nel assels approprialed 1,329 881 - (1,329,681}
Tolal other financing sources (uses) 179,450 (578,793) (1,317,979}
Revenues and cther financlng sources over expendilures
and other thancing usas § - (576,793) $  (678,703)

Reconciliation from budgelary basis {modified accrual)
lo full acerual basis:
Reconciling ilems:

Capital oullay 168,365
Prinicpal porlion of paymenl on Odor Conlrol 21,031
Increase in commilmenl lo PTRWA - refinancing expense {55619)
Decrease in accrued inleresl payable 17,635
Increase In accrued vacalion {2,555)
Increase In accrued OPEB liability {1,320)
Depreciation (328,376)
Amorlizalion (192,506)
Transfer - Randleman Reservoir Capital Reserve Fund 54,000
Interest porlion of paymeant lo PTRWA - Randleman Reserveir

Capital Resarve Fund (71,330)
Inveslmenl earnings - Randieman Reservoir Capital Reserve Fund 5,615
Transfer - Waler and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 326,103
Invesiment earnings - Waler and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 163
(58,774}
Change in net assels $  (B37,567}
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA Schedule 5
RANDLEMAN RESERVOIR CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NON-GAAP)
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues:
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income 3 4,400 $ 5615 3 1,215
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfer from Water and Sewer Fund 54,000 54,000 -
Payment to Piedmont Triad Regicnal Water
Authority (150,000) (148,207) 1,793
Net assets appropriated 51,600 - {91,600)
Total other financing sources (uses) (4,400) (94,207) (89.807)
Revenues and other financing sources under
other financing uses 3 - 3 (88,592) $ (88,592}
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - Schedule 6
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income 3 1,700 § 163 b (1,537}
Cther financing sources {uses):
Transfer from Water and Sewer Fund 350,000 326,103 (23,897)
Reserve for Future Expenditures (351.700) - 351,700
Total other financing sources (uses}) (1,700) 326,103 327,803
Revenues and other financing sources over
other financing uses $ - § 326266 $ 326266
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ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL DATA

This section contains additional information on property taxes.
» Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

+ Analysis of Current Tax Levy
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TOWN OF JAMESTOWN, NORTH CAROLINA Schedule 7
SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE -
GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year July 1, 2011 Additions and Credits June 30, 2012
2011-12 $ . $ 1,646,778 1,602,444 3 44,334
2010-11 30,666 99 25,695 5,070
2009-10 3,201 38 1,039 2,200
2008-09 4,328 . 831 3,497
2007-08 2,266 - 9 2,257
2006-07 1,378 - 115 1,263
2005-08 1,644 - 53 1,591
2004-05 1,560 - 40 1,620
2003-04 4,445 - 3,380 1,065
2002-03 714 - - 714
2001-02 762 - 762 -
3 50,964 $ 1546915 $ 1534368 63,511
Less allowance for uncollectible taxes (23,700)
3 39,811
Reconcilement with revenues
Taxes - Ad Valerem - General Fund $ 1,537.721
Recenciling items:
Interest collected (4,157)
Discounts and releases allowed and other charges 53
Amounts written off for tax year 2001-02 - per statute
of limitations 751
Subtotal {3,353)
Total collections and credits $_ 1534368
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TOWN OF JAMESTCWN, NORTH CAROLINA Schedule 8
ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY -
GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Total Levy
Property
Extluding
City-Wide Registered Registered
Property Total Motor Motor
Valuation Rate Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Original levy:
Property taxes al curreni year's rale g 306,103,580 S 0.39 $ 1,544,804 $ 1,394,685 S 150,119
Discovenes:
Current year taxes 250,255 0.39 976 1,974 -
Tolal property valuation 3 396,353,846
Net levy 1,546,778 1,396,659 150,119
Uncollecled laxes at June 30, 2012 44,334 18,358 25,978
Current year's iaxes collected $ 1502444 $ 1378303 3 124,141
Current levy colleclion percentage 97.13% 98.65% 82.70%
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Town of Jamestown's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Town's overall financial
health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 69
understand how the Town’s financial performance
and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess
the Town’s most significant local revenue source, the
propetty tax. 75

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess
the affordability of the Town’s current levels of outstanding
debt and the Town’s ability to issue additional debt in the
future. 80

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators
to help the reader understand the environment within which
the Town's financial activities take place. 82

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to
help the reader understand how the information in the Town's
financial report relates to the services the government
provides and the activities it performs. 84

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports for the relevant year.

-68 -



-69-

‘UMD | 8U) Joj SIUSLIAIE}S [EIOUBLY PEJIPRE S84 Joud pUE Juaung AL &l UOoas [BI)se|S 8U) Jo uojHod Spual) [BI9UBUY Y| Ul PapIAoJd BIBP BY) Joy S80INCS AL 9IN0S

{AIAnoe [ElUAWWAA0G) pund [BIaU3L) auy) 01Ul pabiaw sem (Anpoe adh-ssaulsng B) pund ¥IBd UMS)sawer ey *gooz "+ AInr Mo (Z)

‘pE “ON IUBWRIR)S pIeog spiepuels Bujunoody [EluBLILBA0D) J0 uopelUBWaldu) 3ous pajuasald s e "eIgel siy} uy padojaaap Buag ) UonewUoL puss Jeak-ua) (1)

00L'EPLSE 902'r20'62 126892 P SIEE60EZ § p6L'99222 3 T59'G65°LZ 8 PIEEOE0Z 8 68L'€5)'0Z 00Z'9rL’6L & 5j985e Jau WwawwenoB Lewud |g10)
cLLSPP 9.0'0Z0'9 010°2rL'S DEF'LGE'S LPE'GPE'S 129°080'¢ 127 LPE IGPELLY e pajowsaIun
ZbS'6PY 050'2€5 9E9'GSY 006228 £95'509 6Z9'68E aF 1'% ZEE bhY g4 pajousey
595'gP0°R} 290'225°8l 6L8'}LOEL SZ6'rLE9L 8 0eFlecalL § zZop'sziey $ LPE'OSF'GY 8 SZB'HEE' VL SOB'PELEL $ 1GSF pajeled Jo1au ' siasse [e)ded vl palsasu|
wewwanol Ay
ozLZIg'l 18T°05F L1 996299°9L ZrPO'ZIOGL § SI22TE'SE § 062°198'sL § €h'P20'SE  § pSE'LGL Y 606€89FL 8 s1255e Jau Saliaoe adA-55aUIsSNG (3oL
PLZT'60L'S SEQ'QER'S 9EY'SIE Y £99'LSL'p LZFOL'E 0:8'89L°E 0Z6'G16'E TP PL6'T SEZLLP Y palL saiun
OPP'EOL'HL PSO'ELOZE 0ESL6T'ZL GLE09F 1L & PSEE0E'LL § 088'ZTI9HL & ESL90VIL 8 8262804 pe9'eoz'0l  § 193P pajEIa) 0 18U ‘518558 [RIICeS Ul pAISOAU)
sanIagoe adA-s5ausng
096'0EE'S 1Z6'E29'L 86579862 cIIgrL  § N 2Pz 8 108'6E68's & 5P 96E'S 162'780'S 3 SI955€ JaU S3NIANOR [2)UBWILISAGE 13101
668°GEE") EPP'E95 TLE'9GE} 181682} 025221 1GLETL LG HEO') 990°66/ L0AZEL' ) padu)saIun
ZPS'6F9 0G0°2€5 8EQ'GSE 096'£28 £06'609 629'68E 9p1'996 Al &py'eak pajausay
6EF'SPE'Y 825'805'9 6PG'PLL'G arLrLy's  § 992267 & Z2OEISE S pGLZPEY S LEE'GSL'p LpZ'90r'e $ 102P pajE(al Jo Jau ‘S1asse (eydes u| palsaay|
JSaNIAIDE [RIUALILIAACE)
iS19558 18N
FA%A 1102 0L0Z (2} 6002 8002 L00Z 9007 5002 002
(Buunoady jo siseq |eniaay)
(1) sueap 1eDS|4 BUIN 15BT
L siqel jusuodwon Aq s198sY JoN

YNITOHYD HLYON ‘NMOLSIIWYF 40 NMOL



0981 '¥ H SES'66L 'Y 9TL'PSE'Y H tha'oto'y b0oZ'0R6'T H 859'/98'C ] FAEEEED B 82/'007'S 3 ZI'L'S sanuaiss Welbod pawwairet Aewud eio)
667 6687 579986 HZTHITE 98P'EES'T 1E8'pIbe _£99'9/¢'¢ Ay 6eE GCEOYBS 968'05LT sanuasa weiboid sananoe adhssausng 210
- - L16P'AZE 000'09 - oag'sk ZEP'E . - JOMBS DUR JBIBAK
sudIngluos pue sjowib pydes
- - - - £57'296 5L0'606 620°1T6 8ZL'9i8 114908 Mad Limo)saler
892°658'C HZ6'08E'T 6EL'888'T S A 4 BLE'2572 ara6LPZ S1oElTE LEL'pIEL SZ6'EYE'L Jamat pUE JBIBAA
-593rAas Jo) sebieyn
soyanae adirsseuEng
R 6082121 08v'079'L LIE/BFL £4£'555 966'065 B80°055 108'658 [ARIA) SaNUSAS Weifo.d SeARIE (BuBLIBA0S [B1DL
- - €.6'0C 266'5C - - - . - uoneeay
- - £88'21Z 0052 ieg'g b00'sg olgil 12’5 618'4T £39|A138 NG
suennduiuay pue siued g)|ded
190'62 L' LLT 8EL'BIC 186'91E frdaxatv Ti0'88T LI0°59T €ZE'GEL ooo'os wolEaraay
- - - - - - 05 - 65608 Ajejes 2yqnd
SE6'LE} pS'6 LLVORE 620'£0} [2:Th440 OL5T2H Fi4aant 9E'00¢ £2v'96 £30lA138 4and
. . STS't 05L'8 LEG'E - - - - Nawwakoh [e1susd
“SLOHNQUIUGY pUe sueld Goelado
5€.'886 Lor'zL $Z1'EER I8P 006 18%'5T [ATa=4 L9 F 1ZP0F BEG' 18 Lo[1E3126Y
- - - - . - . ¥ - Aapas aygng
8L BOL 8Z6'80 14 LELOLE 184'004 EVE'6L bil'g 6t 85e'e 1961 sa2|M38 dang
asL's $ 086’8 £20'52 s Skt ZTL'eL g §ZZ'98 5 995 L0} H zL9'89 s 00628 aURIeA06 |2I3UBSy
EaDIAJBE 0] Fafueyn
93[ILANIE |BUBWILRAAGD
sanuaaad WeibBold
064'21P' H Ye5'PLL'S GEE'L56'S H £12'609'G BEY'BSL'S H LI08L’s H G£9'80L'S H [EEN RN 5 P89y sasuedxe Justuwasob Aretid 0]
6PS'6SLT _9EG'PSZT ZBB'0LZ'Z £80'688" 8480418 ZE9IgLE L8E'TET ObJ §98'Z 020'BYi T $95Uadxa saitalde adArsaLIsg (B0 L
- N - - SLEEB0t FHeBe0'L [y §25'LE0°) LpT IO Hed umosawer
BYOB5LT 968'952'2 6670122 299'695'1 £97'ZRO'T 9842802 8261161 sLzzes'l teiTest MRS puB J3|BAY
‘samnee nn-ﬂymw;.:wbm
LLLELEE §2E'E(G'E ZIT eI 6Z10P9'C OLE'GRS T SBPBIS'Z 8FZ I8 L L6'PE6E ZELBICE sasuadxa sajpu}oe |BluaWWIAA0E [eloL
ora'y PEE'L BCLEL £k 1 oZLie ¥Z5°vE ZI9TR apL'ts 258 F9 198p uuap-buo) ue jsa1glu|
€ Lzas' 806'124'1 oteesdt 28071081 909504 6E1'689 Z51'06% 080'apy $ZEGeL uoealady
TrT'T6L 08E'05L rS8'899 LL8°8P9 20454 8CT'Eve 058°2E9 598'509 $£6'5E9 Alapes 3190
096995 S0Z'1EY 956'659 SEOVER 096°ZEY RZ1'669 LeE'08t ar0's5¢ $96'25E £39LU3S 2NN
CHI: T AT ] H £62'808 £L4'729 H 185'pE9 296999 s 85T g £0Z'995 [3 TLL'MS $ £10'0¢9 WawwaAnb jrieues
-FAMLANOR [BUB WAL
sasuadxy
[AX 1 10z (15 ) 8602 2002 L00T 900Z 00T [
(Bununosay Jo sISBg [BNIOYY)
(1) stes, |eosid aulN 1587
z alqe] s)959y 18y ul sebueyn

YNITOHVYO HLYON ‘NMOLSIWYT 40 NMOL



-

UOIIUN) WAILISAOD) [EXAUAD 5Y) 0] UKIUN) LOIEERAY ay) WGy pasolts alasm saiouabe yord-uou o) paplaang uma L aul eyl siesl Jeak B35y 7102 aut yrw aageay3 (¢}
“{Aunirae jR1oewwasch) puhd [B1aUsD aU) ol pabrow sem (KjAl0e 3dA)-SSEUIENG ) PUNd XIB UMOISBWE AL} '§O0Z 'L Ainr O [z}

$E ON WALIIEIS LEsg sfukpUES BUNUNOIdY |BIUGWLWAADL 13 UONEUBISdLY 30uls pajueserd 51 2IRg '9|q

51 u) padorasap Bunag s) uoneuuopn puel) Jleak-ual {1}

ZEY 6% 189'p08 ZV9SLL L 1267208 825'€04 3 12069 s ISE'ETe vZE'6bF 861844 wowwaaol Alewud eio1
(195 2€9) 6VE'29L QZH'0L0') B5£7202 SZ0'VpS L0468 YE9'957 €82 FO} 892'08) sa)uaIre edAi-ssauisng
620102 4T 989'POL £81'501 106'29} H 86162 g £22'96% P0G PE 0£0'869 SAPAIIIE JUALLIAOD
18}265E 19U u| adueysn
VYO LGS T 0L96LEC S8L'TITT SBP'9RET TLPBOPE B SBL'PZYT B BLL0ZZT T9E'060T BIE'EGET \wawwaAch Aelrd [e1o )
TN 68E'SE 14628 085'9EL Ci586E 801 231 089'6¢ B80°EEL 280641 S3MANIR dA-SSAU)SNG BIO)
lozp'asy) - - - 00005+ - 00258} 00P'Ls 00F' 1§ £ig)suBSL
- . olg't - SEE TI6'L YR (250 t4) £88'2} siasse (ended Jo Ies uo (501 Ued
- . - - - - - 90U 766'2H SPOBUBNIISIA
. 25171 R - . . - - - Pun) 78410 WOIKO) IIUBADE UO 152I9}U]
052742 pel'ce £90'99 ogs'et) LEZ'GRL E6L'PSE PLTTLL 0s1'9L 96965 F319U)52UUN 'BLUDIU} IUBLUISAAL|
- . - - - - - 54 18525 swelboud ayiaads o) PaIAUISE JOU SUONNAUIUGS B SJURID
‘salAoe sdApTsAUSNE
0Z8'PEQ'E [ErATrA B0 S0Z 2 SLELYZT 198TEVE 060792 R1G08LT $ST'LGE') [YEAINS sanjalae [uawaAak 18]
9TV REL - - - {ooo'0s1) - 0088 (00p'19) (0015 S13JSURI)
- - b2 ooo'e 8le't - {Spa'LL) 86F' LT 8/6'6¢k s)as9e [2)|des (o o8¢ UD (S50(} UED
zoT'e 852 £16'G $86'Z Zee'y - 082’1 - Lid SNOSUR(|BISIN
- {86LZ4) - - - - - - - Puhy JBUYIO WOIKOL AJUBAPE UD 1SDIAW|
o048 P00t LE0'M4 0si'eL SOW'EZL OLP 4EL 159'06 [R-1y7 4 Yoy iZ PIBUISANN "BWOMI WBUNSBAU|
- - - - - Pl Pe 05€'F9 agg'ed ZLL'PGE swauboud Hpaads o)
PAIAUNS FU SUGNGYIUGD PUE SIWBID
T6¥'9LL 000'692 621 '9¥L 180'58L 9.£'688 $e8'EEL 178'8b9 028'885 §86'255 soxE] U
v66'8Y5'L 958°885 1 0L9rEY L THL'ZPP'L Erese’) H 129 LEE) H 1Zs'ee'tl 808'/82') 2LLLv0'E sesodind je1auab o) palag| “saxe Apadolg
150X
ISR RLIILANDD
s1858Y 1oy Ul 82flueys JAYID pue senuakay (EiaUdn
2st'esz'd) 886pig 1) £l 2604 (r28'845 1 208'¢92 1) 5 [ S (1ze's6e't (8E0°HFO'L) {(a95'088'H) asuade 18U IRLWarol Aiewwd el
605'68 [ 6YE E00 2LLEaT eGP 826 b5t vI6 B2 {5108z} 9.8°} sananae adA-9sauisng
(as'iees (516'80L'7) (ZZS0042) 25LZP'D) (osg'oly'E) s (€01 p26'¢) H (g6¢'e28'M) {&zzzig'h UrrZ'Zeg'L) SRAUANDE [BILSLILSACD
enuean) {asuadxa) 19
TT LHOZ 010z @ 6002 8002 L00Z 800Z S00Z +00Z
{Bununooay jo SISEQ |EMIJ3Y)
panunuoa {1) s1Ba ) |E2S14 BUIN 1SET]
‘T AlgeL s]a55y JaN U] safueyg

YNITOYYO HLHON ‘NMOLSIWYr 30 NMOL



-z

“(Ananoe [eluswiwenoB) pund [e1auag) oyl ojul pabiaw gBm (AAN0E 2dA)-SSaUjSNY B) pUNS YIBJ UMOISSLIET a4] ‘8002 'L AIRT U0 (Z)

'S "ON JUBLUBIEIS PIBOE SPIEPUEIS Bulunosoy |BlUaWWwano Jo uoleuawaidun asus pejuasald st @leq aIge) siy| ut padoraap Buleq si uonewior pual) Jeak-ua]l {1}

BO9'P8LF %  GEGBBLYT S ozi'vsar $  £pROLEE S POZOBBE S 6G9.96€ $  2/6669¢€% 9ZL00Z'€ $  ZZLLLLE B wewwaach Aewnd jejo ]
852'658°C 979'996'Z aeZ'vic e EEr TR 1E8'PIF'E £99'0L€'C agb'ebL'e 5Z6'0va'C 969°06.'Z  annoe adAy-ssouisng oy [BI0)NS
¥/N ¥IN YN /N £5t°296 5L0'606 6£0'LZ6 8Z1'048 L£4'908 3led Umo)saler
852'659'C 929'986'C 9eZ'FIZ'E 99r'eLr'e 8./£'25¥'C 9r9'29%'e irp'aze’e 164'756°L GZe'era’L lomas pue Jajepp
sanianoe adA)-sssuisng
0GE'SZEL 606'ZLZ') 06%'0v9"L LICIBPL £/£'GOS 966065 980055 108'6GE 9zv'oTy BINAICE [BIUSLIUISACE L0} B10)aNS
96.'¥/0'} 1¥1'666 9ez'081L°} 99c'6rZ | 599 /E€ S8¥'GLE ¥G.'90€ 052°9.1 865 LEL LOE2I0Y
- - - - - - 06 ¥ 65608 Ays4es o11gnd
R5¢' LT ZRLv0Z S09'€Er GLE'SLE 678012 GeTLLE 9/9'6¢et GE0'SLL 69662 §20|M8S 0lj1gnd
9616 $ 086'8 $ Br99z $ GEY'ZE ¢$ 6599, $ GZZ'eG ¢ 99g5'i0L % 21699 ¢ QUs'/8 $ SUETIVINERG AT
SBIUANCE [BJUSLLUIDAOD)
z1L0z LLoZ 0102 Z) 6002 8002 1002 9002 5007 002
{Bununcooe Jo sISeq [BMI2Y)
(1) siea ) [BOSI4 BUIN ISE
£ Blge] uonoun4 Aq sanuaaay wuiboid

YNIMOHVYD HLYON ‘'NMOLSINVYE 40 NMOL



-gl-

‘pUNS [BJBUSS) 3L Ul PAPN[OUI MOU BIB YIBd UMOISILIEL JB SAUOJUBALY 8YL
“(Apanoe (BjuswusAob) pund jeiauasy ay) ol pafilaw sem (Aanoe adA-ssaLisng B) pun- ed uMolsaWer ayl 'gooz ‘I AINP uQ - ()

$BINIDR) PUE SPISY [BUDHBSID8] MBU JO UORONISU0D U papuadxa sem a2uejeq pund - (g)

$2INJIPUAAXS UOBACUS) |[BH UMD} UD papusdxe SBm asueeq pund - (2)

patabBong uoieAoUSl B umo} - (1)

LSP'EPD'T S ELL00ZL $ 165799’ $ 6p0'80L°C & 0ESLLL)L 8 TrAPAgL $ 801'009'L § (&) 6e9ebz’t ¢ (2) L8Z'v6G°L $ {2} 9Ep'Z06°) ¢ puny fereuab B0
Z8LATEY Per'eys GL9'65Z') PSE'908 eLLTL8 92’696 LB9'6EC') L8G2°208 GZ9'6E6 GEE'LLS paubisseun
00824 00009 0L0°P0L 20Z'L1E TLE'2BT 120'50E - - €12 161 (L) IpG'IS0°'L selnppuadxs sJeak anbasqng
IL'TE - - - - - - - - - uapea0ay
‘poubissy
Z5¢'L8 SPe'Z - - - - B B - - |epdes asmn 4
PO
i1 A 26162 L0V PET She'cop £86'Z7IE 950" 16L 996'9.E vi6'8LT 9i0°eLe [i14] % 7 nsANg
£av'Loz EIEPOT LEG 122 SLLPZY 086'S67 £L5'BE1 21691 |0P'29L ELE00L Shh'pe B)njele #1218 A UONEZINGEIS
pepLysey
vZG'El LBEEL £20°€L PLLLG T4 8tz 57) - - - swig)| predaid
£0L'PE s 2eTVE 8 sgp0'0s  § poE'Gr  § - 3 - $ - $ - s - - g SAUSIUBAY|
.e|qepuadsuop
pung |eJauac)
ajue(eg pung
Loz A% oi0z 2] BOOT BOOZ 00z 9002 2002 FOOZ £ooZ
{Buuno3aoe Jo s1Seq |BNIDOE palypoOl)
siea ) [B9514 U3 js87
v 2iqet SpuUng |BjualLulIann s ‘saoUejeg pung

¥NITOWVYD HIHON ‘NMOLSTWYr 40 NMOL



UOHBaI8 JAPUN PADNIUI MOU BJE Salnupuadxa sSINGS OB ‘Se64 PUB SHULISS (BILALIBAOL) JBPUN PapnLl MoU BI8 S3aNUBASI BSIN0D JI0O
{Aagoe euawllaaoB) puny jereuas auy ol pabrew sem (Auayoe edAy-ssauisng B) pUnd SIBd UMOISEWET ay) ‘900z 'L AN ug - ()

SENUGAR) PIUYIM B1EIS (Z)
uoperaaal xe (1)

%¥T %62 %L b %02 %6'6 %9'8 %l Ll %aGl %6'9L Yk €7 sanypuadxs (gudeoLol Jo
aBetecsod e SE $901A105 1087
Log'ase & (8Lb'Za9) ¢ (e6e'azz) & LZ0'L5L 8§ 89.'90L ¢ viG'es ¢ 625798 § (eva'ose) ¢ (vzurezy) § (086'v62) 3 sacuBleq punj L1 ebueyd 1o
[EHT LIL'BE 5889 51T [EF6+Z) 0S0'ELL 00£'89 (z08'51) 0SE'SOF 00L"64 (sa5n) sadInos
Suisuewy JoLo [BjoL
(%41 - - - {oo0'osL) - {ooo'oL) {ooo'ogt) {ooo'oe ) - SPUN JBLH0 O} SI3JSURIL
74 42971 - - - - - 00.'8L 009'Az 009'8L 0028l SPUNJ JBUI0 WA} SJRjSUR |
D0s5'L 005'¥ - 000'€ gLe'l 88z’ - BEF'LE Si6'9EY - 9)asse j©)ded Jo 3jes
£5L'F LI9'bE 589'g 558l - - - - - - A1ar00al SouRINSU|
- - - - BEL'EZL 794'60L - - Gii'61 - 198P 10 8OUBNSS[
(sasn) sasunos Bulaueuy JayQ
£26'40L {55912} (e92'2e2) £1F'62ZL LEL1EL (9.¥'v5) 6ZR'E6Z (G¥L0EE) (¥20'5e8) (099'cLE) seumypuadxe (fapun) RAG
Sanuasal Jo mmwoxm
SLLEGE LE6VLIT Y 752°069°¢ G0'CLOE 26L'8LLT £62°058Z 650°28E°T £I7997 £1L'786Z 0L1'985°T seInypusdxa [eloL
SYS'Y 9Z5'9 LZLEL 8L0'E2 6¥0°1E £68'PE 685 EF 95Z'¥S 0E0'00 08044 saBiewp Jayjo puUB JsBIRIY
18Z'8L FReS'98 LLG'RZL 186212 vl 161 BLYLBL zii'egl 9£z'9ze L9Z'vET BLS'0EZ tedilld
axAles 1Ge]
18L'E $8Z'966 696462 9v6'Fa bGL'aLL €900/ ESbviL $90'809 964'788 Lb6'LLB Aepng iRIdeD
£06'668° 1 G05'8Z9L 955'669'1 180°'FL") L0F'089 2a¥'G6S TL6'L55 LBG'ZYY BLEZEE Y2852 uohealsey
¥i1'59L ZSHETL Z0r'129 650'665 brZ'ent BiLY'EES £EL'986 891'495 Sr5'58S vig'SHZ Aages olland
68E'G15 bEE'LOE ¥0.°069 181'G8E 8.5°iPE SO RED 26T'PLE b5L'80€ 8G0'ZLE S08'¥6E 582|aas DIIANg
208l % 149'69¢ & £Z8'645 $ eLF'yre § 209°c09 $ 965°028 ¢ 289'616 ¢ trL'vir ¢ gor'155 § 656°ZLY 8 JusuaAo [BIBUBD
sainypuadxy
8E0'GFY'E ZOT'ESGE BoF'RSS'E BES206E £76'156'2 129'56L°2 4800882 126°5¥EZ 6£9'6Z}'Z 015'781' s0nUaAs. [B10L
ELo'LE 8Z8°c 0899 GHG'g GEa't (o2 04z’ - LLLT 0LZ'6¥ snosUe|assiy
ELL'y Z69'EL Go'se | 50¥'29 §90'98 L2E'96 LEE'LOL STHEY aLIge S90'€G aWooU! uBULISBAL|
142986 009'589 000'pLO'L $OL'Z90'L $2Z0LL zet'Le S08°0FL 91688 LZ0'GGL ZEL'61 598) PUE SBOIAISS
Z92'¥81 B8LE° YL £.9'68914 £08'98L YSv'oLL GEG'6ET 182°0LL o) A=le] 6B5'6F2 SHy'6LL BB A0BIBILT parasay
ZZ8'016 ObL'E56 995'696 £18'200'L ELI'ES0'L 8EF LFD'L €210 06 0.L£'GLE 091268 786'068 [ElRWWA0EI8 | pEIoUIS2IUN
L2i'ieg'L g £09'V55°L & SPE'ZPY'L S POR'LFP'L S ZEF'ASE'L S L00'BZEL S Zbe'vze'l ¢ (1) £1L5282°L 8 9/€'8k0'L S 960'LL6 $ (£} SaKEL UBIOIBA PY
zhoz (e) Loz (e} 0102 (e} &002 8002 £00Z 9002 G002 00z £002 sanuaasy

S 8qel

{Buzunoo2®\ Jo SISBQ |BNJII2E payipoi)

BIRBA [BDS|4 U3 158
spund [Bjuailiulason ‘sasuejeg pund u| sabueysn
YNITOUWYD HIMON ‘NMOISIWVI 40 NMOL



99qel

Imhl

Xe} |esodsip ajsem piiog (g)

§88] 8SIYdURI O8PIA PUE
‘xe} seb jeumeu padid 'xe) asiyouryy AN ‘XB} $8|BS SUOIIEIIUNWILLOIS[S] sepnputl Xe | asiyoueld (|)

2 TR AAA AN A RN vlLl'vl (V) 1i8°11¢2 §19'08¢ 1222851 zL0z
/65'0€T'e  (2) s8z'T 620Gl (1) so8'¢6Le G/8'2vE £09'v5S'L 1102
£€/€'960'c (@) IvE'C 628’y (1) e6.cle £5t'ZEE SY6 TPl oloz
089'/zl'e (@) ¥ILO') 0€L'GL (1) soL'ZLg 129'25¢ 08 Lt L 6002
911'260'C - 626l (1) olg'ole G6.'10% ZEP'8GE" L 8002
9082402 - 4 hd (1) 27/¢£'862 Q/G'GEY 100'62E'L 1002
£51°'886'L - 06E'PL 09g£'6¢e¢ Relora s Zy6'vZe'l 9002
61L0'688'L - 989'€| 8z¢£'82¢ Z6¥'09¢ €16'28Z'L 5002
6€9'219°) - glz'el 119'22¢ 11€'GE€E 9/€'9v0'L 002
186019 €Sl 0S¥'€Z2 Z82'e0v 960°'1L/6 £002
|ejo] soxe| Xe| Xe]| Xe] Xe] Jeap
SE=1T3 Mg obelanag asIyouel4 sd|eg Aadoug |eoasi4
aljoyoa|y

(Buiunoooe jo siseq jentode payipolAl)

SIEDA |EISIH UD] ISET
224nog Ag saNUaA8Yy XE] |BJUSLUUISAOL) [BIaUSL)

YNITO¥VYO HLYON ‘NMOLSINVI 40 NMOL



L2|qe]

-g/-

aqe(EAR JoU BlBg  WN
UONBLLIOjU| [BIJUBUIH JINSESL| S1B)S J0 Juswpeds(q BUIOIED) YUON 3y} Wwol) paujejqo afirjuaaiad olel s3|BS JusluSsasse
31BI59 (BAJ B AQ an|EA passasse ajqexe) Buipiap Ag pajenojes 1 Apedoud [Bal JO anjeA 3iqeXe) |BN)oE palewnsy (¢}
‘§2)NEIS [BJUSS) BUIICIESD UHON YUM SOUBPIOOOE U] $3)B) XB) JESA JoLd 1B PaIAS| S8J21USA
Jojow palaysiBal ulepas wol ale sasuasaylp Jueoyubis 1sow ay| el abelane pajybiam B ale sajel 1981p
asnenaq Jeak [B2SY YOea j1ounoy) umo] ayj Aq paaoidde sajel apim-Umo] ay) Wwouy Siagip el Joanp [e1suab ayy
anjea 00L$ fad ()
wawHedag xey Aunon ploying aanoes (L)

¥N ¥N 006E'0 9¥8'cGe o6E ZeL'ET9'LS rlLlL'oeL'gge zioz
%ele0L 800'L¥0'68¢ 6880 EEE'ELSE0P G¥8°Z08'09 88¥'0LL'ZPE 1102
%Z0'S6 LZE'SrL LY ooLEC 0L8'0FL'EBE 68/'095°/G §20'v.LG'GEL oloz
%0916 G6.'0EE'BER £69E0 800'£2¥'20F I¥L'2eZ'6G 192'¥0Z'eve 8002
%%C.l'26 88/°18E°¢Cer 00SE'0 ¥6E'7E9'1L6E ¥55'028'65 0r8'L L8 LEE 8002
%2196 BSO'vE'66E COSE'0 601'0EEF8E ZEF'0BB'8S LL9'BF'STE 002
%69'86 rL9'6FL'o8E 00se 0 ¥G0'LB0°LBE ZLE'19E'8S Zri'6zL'LEE 800Z
%SE 66 068¥'022°2 .8 00se’0 155'89L'¥/LE Z95'c00'6s G/8'¥9L'GLE G00¢
%0908 995'0LP'rLE S8rFe0 9L8'vLL LOE 6LG'1L06'9S LBE'ELBPPE 002
%6les POL'EVL PPE 98gE°0 8r9'Z62'98¢2 L£G'G06'GS LLL'L8E'0EE £00Z

an[ep 194y anjep a)ey anjep Anadoud |euosiad Aadold 0¢ aunp
1o aBejuaniad yIeAYy3|gEXE] XB] passassy 13110 pue 3[aIyaA Jojol [elalaulwon pUe |BRUSPISISyY — papul
B SE an|eA |emoy P91 ajqexe] |ejo| Apadoud [euosiad Apadold jeay eajp
passassy pajewsy |ejol |easi

(€) (@

s120) |B9SI4 US) 1587

fadoud ajqexe] jo anjea |en}ay pajew|}sy pue anjep passassy

YNITOYYO HLYON ‘NMOLSIWVYI 40 NMOL



g a|qel

INNI

‘3181 X} UMO] 3y} Ul Papn[aul AJBIjUSssSa 5| XB] 3U} S1UJ ‘10UISIP 8.1 3U} Ylm A|10alIp SIoeIjlo0
UMD | BU} 8sneoaq SjUapIsal umoisaller 0} ajgeoldde Jou s Xe) $1014810 UoRdj0ld il AlunoD ay )

SANIEG |BISUDS)
BU||CJED UHON YUM S2UBPIOOIE Ul $818) XB) Jedk Joud Je palas| sa|oiysA Jojouwl pala)siBal uiepad woly
ale saoussayip Juesyubis 1sow ay) slel abelase pajyBblam e ale sa)el j0a1lp asnedaq leak |eosy Yoea
spseoq BujuisaoB ey Aq pascidde sajel apim-umol pue -AJunoD ay) Loy SISIp Siel yoallp (elauabay)
'S2)0N

‘Justupedaq aouellq AJUNGD PIOING [82N0G

velll ¥e8.L°0 006E°0 zloeg
69cl | ¥iEL°0 G680 LLoe
vi0L°L PLELOD Q04LE°0 0lLoe
£S0L°L 09EL 0 £69E°0 6002
FOvO' L #0690 008E'0 800¢
BOLO'L 8099°0 00SE°0 200¢
6lL660 6L¥90 Q0ge 0 a00¢
BLLE O 81290 00SE°C 5002
cla0’l LLLLO SePEQ ¥002
BZLO'L ePio0 98CE’0 £002
jey 3100.41Q Ane Araa IEETN
|ejol |eJauan [eJaussy |easi4
Aunon uMOjSaLLe
pJOJIND JO UMO]

funog pioyng

sieaA |[eoasld uaj jse
(enjep passassy JO 00L$ Jod)
sjuawuiaaocs Buiddepsap pue 39aliq - sajey xe) Adadoid
VNITO¥VYD HLYON ‘NMOLSIWVYI 40 NMOL



%BS €l LE6'TL8'BE $

%G5 0 000'845°}

%450 006'629'1

%090 828'LLLL

%190 000°252° L

%P0 008°'886'C

%BE | Siv'LIB'E

%0b | G68'000'%

%6471 LIZ'SEL'S

%26 | SLL'LOS'S

%0L'€E or8165°0l $
uonen|ea uclienjea

passoassy |EJOL passassy
LB UERIEN|
£00Z 1B2A |B2SI4

%eL L 65025 op $

%¥S50 coz'isl'e

%G5S0 15'9g91'z

%950 oov'622'e

2990 00lL'229'g

%1870 710'26L'E

%S0} 004'2rl'y

%eT L 6L1'CZ8'Y

%ET’L 002'048'%

%irT G68'Z0B'6

%P9 016'99%'01 $
UuQnen|eA uolnenjea

possassy |Ej10) passassy

JLBUELIEN

Z10T JESA |EISIS

IWNI

Ajjoe 4 Buunpeinuep 10 Jaumo
Buunoenuep

Bulnioeinuey

sjuawpedy

Jayuss Buddouyg
Bumoeinuepy

Buunioeinuep

uonnusut jeoueul 4
Buunioeinuepy

Bunnioenuepy

asudiajul jo adA)]

sjuawpedy

Jomngiisig

Jaay Buiddoyg

Aljioe 4 BulnRBINUBA O Jaump
Bulnzeinuey

Buninioeinuey

Bunnioeinuepy

Jaeg Buiddoyg
Bulnioenuey

alej ujeeH

uawyedaq xe| AJUNOD pIOYING ;82Inog

[Bjol

D11 5305

S|BOILLSYD PUB SJUSAI0G BIUE(Y

277 sdswijod BupiiA

uopepossy abe||ia umoisawe

O umalsawer 4 N

|| ucne) SlEPe

Ul S| pleing

uonelodion BujseaT] BIAOUDEAA

"ou| ‘s1aueiuo) puelybiy

04 ybiH Jo Auedwos Bupyeq siamold

aslidlajug jo adA)

Jakedxe]

[ejoL

uoneossy abig|p umolseswer

Ul wSN JBAlUN

377 AlpuUall 4 UonBAOUUSIAA

071 880

0717 si8WAjod BupiiA

iod ybiH jo Auedwon Buneqg slemo|d
ou| ‘ssaueue) pue|ybiH

O771 slepisalod 41

umolsaler Jo Auedwon Buyeg siamo|4
2U| ‘UDHBIBUAD) 1STEBID)

lafedxe)

6 99e L

€002 PUB Z}0Z ‘0¢ @unp papug sieaj [easi]

leaj 9y} 104 sisAedxe] |edioung

VNITOYMVYD HLYON ‘NMOLSIWVI 40 NMOL



ImNI

Juawpedag Xe] Aunog pioying sy} Ag pelo9||0 aIe soxe)l Aledosd UMOISaLUED JO UMD ]
wawpedsq xe] AJUNOT) pJoj{IND PUB SJUSLUS]EIS [BIDUBUL PSJIPNE UMO)SSLUEB[ JO UMO] 192IN0g

PEE' Y $ %EL' LB i 206" L $ - $ %EL LB Pri'Z0G" | $ 8/2'g¥G’| $ Loz
0L0'g $ %8966 L£L'895"| $ G69'GZ $ %S0'86 9E0'ErS'L $ L08'esG" $ 1102
ooz'e $ %G8'66 BSYZSY L $ £96'6 3 %9166 Zer' eyl $ BGOPGY | $ 0Loe
1B¥'E $ %8.L'66 FAR Al $ qoF's $ %El'B6 IFB'0LF' L $ B08'CaP L g 6002
L8622 $ %8 66 95+'89¢" L $ €109 $ %0t 66 £ 2og’t $ €L2£'048" $ 8002
£82'L $ %1666 Z68'eEre’L $ 00g'L $ %9€ 66 ZBG'9EE"| $ GGL'GrE'L $ £00¢
L6S'L $ %8866 gzz'zee’t $ 687'Y $ %9566 BEB'LZEL $ BLE'EEE' L $ 8002
0zg'L $ %8866 QLL'OLE" L $ 1892 $ %0t 66 681'Z0€"L $ 0B89°LLE'L $ G002
G90'L $ %0666 ¥1'G50°1L $ REL'L $ %2 66 800°'8¥0'L $ Z1Z'es0'L $ #¥002
FLL $ %E6 66 189'¢.6 $ BEL'D $ %6ET 66 Z¥6'696 $ GBE'CLB $ €002
saxe] KneT xe] jeN SU0103||0D SAADT SIBBA Juadiad junowy Knam TN
juanbuieqg 01 SUOND3([0D xe| [ejo| Jold uo fng des ) Jualng xe] 1aN {eost4
Bulpueising xe] [ejo] uoI93]j0D Uo UoD3||0D

SIeoA [e9SI4 U9) jseT
01 o1qel SUO0199)|00 pPuUe saIAaT Xe] Auadodd

VNITOHVO HLIHON ‘NMOLSTNVI 40 NMOL



‘UMO]SBLLE[ JO UMO] 23U} Jo} 9|ge|iBAR JOU SI awodul [euoslad [gjo]

‘uonoas Aoeden anusasy oy Ul Apadold e|qexe] Jo aN|EA [BN)OY PI)BLIAST PUE PISSISSY JO JNPayos ay) @eg
"g|npayas sonsnels oiydelbolua(] sy} U umoUs 81 BlEP Uole|Indod

‘|Bqe|ieAR JON - YN

‘2107 fequeldes ul 9|ge|ieae st uonended | LOZ ‘0 sunf (8JoN

N 0zz'es - - N N 0ze'es (4%
A 00S'0E ) - - %E0'0 FAS 005'0€ ) 1102
¥9 #80'LLT - - %S00 +9 r90°L12 0102
(3574 £08'688 ool 802 v¥S %600 LOL GRS GPE 600c
Sty 6/6'G0S'L 08¢ EEQ'BY6 %EL'Q S9L 9v6°'/.GS 8002
€8S £6G°296'1 G6E ZTO0EE'L %910 88l L26°LE9 2002
9zl 89¢c'20¢'2 LLS 0G2'e69'L %810 GLe BBO'ELL 9002
S68 802'0v6'2 02e 8. 'I€0'T %¥Z G Sl¢ 091'206 gooz
¥80°IL GOL'0EG'E LS4 6O¥' LOP'Z %0g0 9%t 969'g2) 'L 002
Gze'l $ GEL'O60'F 3 L68 $ £GG'EGL'2 8 %6E 0 1494 $ Z8L'EVE’ L 3 €002
euden Jad 192Q epden Jad Buioueuly Auaadoud a|qexe] enden Jad Buoueuly -EYY
1927 JUSUWILIBADCD 192 wawjeISu| 4O anjeA [enjoy 1920 juswjeIsu| [easid
Buipuesinp Aewid Bulpuesinp pajewnsy o} Bujpuelsing
leol 2L 19aq Buipueising
jo oney
sanlaloy adAl-ssaujsng S311IAI0Y [BJUSWIUIDADD

SI1B3\ |B2SI4 U9] }Se
1 elgel adA] Aq 1qaq BulpuelsjnQ jo soney
VYNITOHVYO HLHYON ‘NMOLSIAVI 40 NMOL



‘g

‘saiualoe adAl-ssauisng sapnioxg

‘Buoueul JusW|BISUI

usaq sey sajAnoe [eluawiusact sumolsatuer 1o} pansst jqap Iy AND

ay} Ag uonexe) Jo joalans Auadold jo sniea passasse sy} jo {%48) luadad Jubie
pPa20Xa 0] 10U S| UMOL 9y} JO J9ap 18U 3y} ‘s3injElS [Blauan) BUIlGIED YHON Japupn

02225 20E'804'LE 9¥8'€SL 98¢ zZLoz
005'0E1 £90°1L82'ZE £eL'cLs'eor 1102
¥RO'LIT oZ'LGF LE CL8'0FL ehE 0L0Z
G65'SHE L9L'¥61'2E 800'L2¥'20F 6002
o¥6' /GG Z65'0EE'LE ¥6E'2E9' 16T 800Z
1L6°LES 80¥'9¥L 08 601'0EE'VBE 1002
889°'CLL T TATR A #50°160°L8E 9002
09%'206 G8¥' L86'AT 16580 v i€ 5002
969'82L°L £66°'L¥L'FE 916'¥L4' L0OE 002
LBLEPE'L ZLF'E06'CE 8¥9'Z62'98¢2 £00Z
¥9eq nwi uonen|ea FEEYN
uuawesu] 199 |eBa passassy |easid

sleaj [Bds14d ua] 1seT
Zl alqel 192Q |en)oy pue uibaew 1gaq (e jo uoneinduwod
VNITOHVYD HLMON ‘NAMOLSINVY, 40 NMOL



INWI

2|UBNEBAR JOU S| BIE(Q YN
'8j00Y2S AUNo pacyinD puUB UoIdNIISU| 2ljgnd Jo Juswpedaq euljoted YHoN (i)

(Jeah aalyoadsal sy Jo aunp Jo se) yS Juled YbiH-ologsuaaln
10} Z10Z-P00Z SIBaA 'ySIN WaBS-uolsuIpm-luo 4 UBIH-ociocgsuaalsy 10} 007 JBRA 'so)she)g JogeT o neaing (g)

BalYy [B21SHE)S UBYjodola)y Juiod UBIH-0l0gsusals) Jo) UONBULIoIU| SisAjEUy D1lWou02g jo nealing (g)

"BUI|0JED) YUON O 9)BlS oy} Jo) Juswabeuey pue 1abpng jo 2010 (L) @2nos

96L'c/ £0lL VN vN VN N zLoe
966°L. 60l 96Z'vE Z8¥'L/8'v2 Z61'GeL ¥05'e LLoZ
G/8°LL 80l LEo'ee ¥50'241'v2 zoB'slL. 96€'¢ 0L0c¢
Yov'LL L2l 1B0'GE G6¥7'896'¥2 GO¥'LLL oLv'e 8002
9/L'LL ¥'9 670'GE S8y LGS ve G817 00. 98e'e 8002
£19'69 A 8/B'CE IPE'TEY'ET /£9'689 69¢E'e £00¢
8L1'89 LG ¥8.'2¢ 000'69¥'C2 157'989 LIE'E 900¢
18299 9¢g vav'Le £59'cLZ'Le GZ6'¥.9 §8zZ'c Gooe
B61°G9 09 Log'0e 18265102 L1E'699 8GZ'e ¥00¢
£/8'c9 L9 9£/'82 052'L00'61 ¥zZ'199 Z60'e £00Z
() Juawyjoiug {¢) arey {z) awoou| {ssejjoq o (z) uonendog (1) Jeap

jo0yas juawAiojdwaun ejiden 124 spuesnhouy) VSIA Ju10d ubiy ucneindod |eoasi4
a1qnd {z) awoou - 0logsugaln) umojlsawepr

Aiunon Jeuosiad

pdo4|Ing 18301

SIBd ) |eJsi4 ua] jse]
g1 9jqeL sonsnels siydesBowaq
VNITOHVD HLYON ‘NMOLSIWVYF 40 NAMOL



l”&l

"splodal umo] ybnouyy pue 'sisAojdwae ypm 108109 Jaallp ybnouyy
‘UoHEIDOSSY SSaUISNG UMOISaWEr AQ paplaotd sEm UOELLIOI|

‘ajqe|/eAe jou s| obe sieah aulu Joj ejep JuswAodwy
"B|qE[IBAR JOU S] UMOISSLLE JO UMO] 8y} Uiylim Juswhodws 210

5l 21015 IBlaY Bruq 112y
1z 21018 @OUBIUSALOI { SUIjOSED) Zi@ayg
El4 Joinguysiq JEAIUN
6% uswwsaos edipunpy UMO]SSLLE[ JO UMO ]
05 21015 [IBl2Y uor poo4
69 Buunioeinue slaulejlo puejybiy
. Buunyoeinuey JawAjod Bunyia
¥G1 lajuan uoneungeyay Aelgy uouueyg
052 Buunoeinuey Aayeg siamo|4
Sog [00Yy2g 2lgnd slooyog AJUNoY piojng

saafodw3 asudiajug jo adA) JaAo|dwg

10 Jagquiny

ZLOZ ‘0€ dunp papuy Jea, |eosiq
¥l SI9EL Jea, 8y) Jo4 stehojdwz |ediound

VYNITOHYD HLIYON ‘NMOLSIIWYr 40 NMOL



{WQI

"PUNZ [B12URD) ay) Ujuim Jualupledaq UoERID2Y B 3LUEI3Q PUNA Yied 2uy) 807172 aapeyd - {1}
-seafojdwa sw-(ny seinbal Auo sapn(oul 9INpayds sIyl

"§PI0J3) UMDISIWES JO UMO | @2JN0g

6% 8z 62 e £ of Le o Lz ze el Ao

6 g ] 6 £T £z vz 54 oz zz spuny asudiaug
(L) VIN VIN VIN VIN vl Sh gL vl L zi Xied
6 8 i & & ] 6 6 8 ol 19MaG ISIEM
:pung asudiaug

az oz 24 zz 8 L L L L ol pun4 |essuas)
Sl gl 91 L4 ¢ z z z z z uoneaney
0 0 0 o} o} 0 0 0 0 z A8)ES 2NGNd
b I b L L b z z z 3 5301A18S DI[gNd
] 14 2 ¥ ¥ ¥ £ € £ £ USWUIDAOSG) |BISUSE)
:pung [eiausg

zioz 3174 oLoz 8002 8002 L00Z BO0Z §00Z Yooz £00Z

sieaA |eosid Ua] 1se
g1 9|qel uonoaund Aq saakojdwg Juawiuiasos Ao awil-|in4d

VNITOHVYO HLYON ‘NMOLSIWVI 30 NMOL



-GB-

ThRET 20612 8Z0°PE 089'52 SIB'QT 008's2 TpE'sT wN N N
0z0's 1852 LE6'8 $86'8 9976 Q05'8 18'SH W N WN
S86'BL 040'8) 928’5, 9v0'1E PEL'ET 619'42 [3::88 wN YN N
ZEE'GER ALY 965'L6) 10K 0419'882' L0 000 ETE ZOP 05¢'009'E5F [ololg - ycto0 [r4:1- TR WN YN ¥N
pEs'h ZiL'P bra'y L28'F 259 PSEY VN ¥N wH N
JBET 8544 8TT'T 1z 9Lz 2052 ST BLE'T S5E'C §08°Z
66¢ (a) £p2 £5F 06k 9z 962 vN wN vN ¥N
[43 (9) 561 (5) 8se 8be 858 744 WN wN wN YN
BT 60 5z 14 222 @ 08z 022 £81 118
5104 €511 $61°L LAl 1GE'L oat's SiF [1:240 16E') PaE’L
ELa] ELO0'L 088 218 6L 8.8 oLt [ort rig {p) 88CL
g s g wN YN YN N N W ¥N
6 cl g N N wN WN VN VN N
23 66 67 54 S 44 o ¥4 [ 0l

T £ 4 5 H t - - - -

£ v v g g g g g € g

7z [:14 14 89 e [23 ¥ - . -

zv [ 14 oA |:T4 e 28 65 58 43

AT Moz 040F 5002 8002 1002 0067 5062 002 £002

2

()
)

(€)

1ayieam Juawa|oul 0} anp pue afiewep uuo)s
isye pasop Bueq spjay 0) anp umop sawec (o)
sawab JyBiu ou 0s ‘ageieaes teBuol ou s)yb (g)
£00Z 1284 Ul uww0ig 89 {#)
{YPUR| 0} USR] $DEO| PAIBUILEILED |5 18N (£)
JUBUNEEN J0J IO UBIH o AT 013u8S S1aamas (Z)

umaisalter Aq pajelado pue *AQuUng?) pIoying

Aq paumo s1UaIum e d U0sgE sapnpul (1)
8|qeyeAY 1oN 180 - YN
“SIUBWILRAI(] UMO | SNIOUBA, 1SDINOG

paual sPeD
sajoy 6 - passd Jjob jo spunoy
sajoy g| - paArd Jlob Jo spunoy
Mred

(suo||eB) Juauneas) rameg
SUOQOBULDD) JaMmBS
SUONIBULOT JBIBA

‘wayshg Alnn

(soweb g) abesn pjal4 Javoog
(sawehb ¥) abesn plai leqaseqg
HISINCETREDY]

(sugy) BuloAsay
{suy) dn-yo1d abeqies) |[e121aWW0Y) § [eNuUapISaY
(suon) dn-¥ad |29 § 95815 Ystug

iSylopa 21qng

panss| sjpuLag uonednaog swoH

panss| sjiuled asuad

panss| syuuag ubig

pasoiddy sue|q UG

paJedalg sasen Buuoz

pajebpeaau) uoneoa apo) bujuoz

panss| saeIYHe ) saueles|D uswdojersq
sBuloz g Buiuue|g

9} 2|qe

uonaund Aq sioledipu| Bupesadg

SIBaA |EISId Ua] ISET]

VYNITONYD HLHON ‘NMOLSINVYI 40 NAMOL



Ll 9lqel

Imwl

3[GB|IBAR J0U BIB(] WN
umo)sawep Ag pajelado 'AQunog plojing
AQ paumo “YIBd uosqio) sepniox3 {1}
‘sHOdaY |19 ([3MOd LWOY S1B3NS JO SB|IN
"SJUBLUPEda] UMO | SNOLBA [$92UN08

{Aluo sEBJE paUBUBL}
splal ||eg/254n07) J|og) Jo abeiany
DBA

{S91IN) SULBW Jamasg

(sol} suei Jetepn

suolje)s dund

Buip)ing souBUSUIER / JUE[H
wAISAG AN

(1} s1)18Ys OWold
(1} spunouBAe|q
{L} spialg Jed00g
Sp|al llegeseqy
SUN0Y S|UUB ),
doysg oud
:UOJR3IDAY puUR BIN}ND

SUONBISG D1l
Aygyeg Agnd

(1v04 jevul]) syiemapIs
(paned-sapW} s19045
syiom ANand 18yl0

SYaNJ] UOWE)IUES
‘uoIjaR||o9 asnyay

sBulping {edounpy

tUonelsiuIpy

WEIB0oI4/00Raung

0oL ooy 0oL ook ool ool ool coL ool ocl

56 55 g5 s e S5 g8 ¥N ¥N ¥N

A ¥ 44 14 4 o o YN ¥N ¥N

z € € € € £ € € € [4

L L L 1 1 I ! } ! I

€ € € € € £ £ € € £

z z z z 2z z z z I I

¥ ¥ 4 4 4 14 14 14 z z

z z 2z 2z 2z z z z z z

- - - - 4 4 4 4 4 4

L 8 L 8 | L I I L L

v L b 2 L b L 8 | 2

S6L'EE gol'ee SOL'EE G9L'EE S9L'gE ¥z0'ze 642'0€ N ¥N ¥N

8z’ 8Z'9L 629k 1E9k 2g'9t 2€'9) Lol [T cl'aL ¥O'9l

£ £ £ £ £ € £ € < <

I 8 L L L L L L L L
zhoz LLoz DLoz 6002 2002 1002 8002 5002 r00Z £002

Sied ) |eosl4 Ua] ise
weabouqyuoizound Ag solisijels 1essy |eliden
VNITOHVYO HLYON ‘NMOLSINVI 40 NMOL



COMPLIANCE SECTION

-87 -



-88 -



i3
< Jf
DIMON HUGHES GOOCDMAN.»

Costifiog Buhle Acemunt wels and Adviner

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Town Council
Town of Jamestown
Jamestown, North Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activiies, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Jamestown, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively
comprises the Town of Jamestown's basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 26, 2012, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Town of Jamestown is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
Town of Jamestown’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Jamestown’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Town's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or
detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Jamestown's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the
entity, members of the Town Council, and Federal and State awarding agencies and pass-
through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Drsen h‘gghae Goedman [LP

October 26, 2012
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